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Dematerialisation of shares and Liquidity:
• 1,27,29,246 equity shares of the Company, representing about 93.61% of the total shares of the Company,

have been dematerialized as on 31st March, 2013.
• Trading in the shares of ADOR WELDING LIMITED is permitted only in dematerialised form with effect from

08th May, 2000 and are available for trading on both the depositiries in India, i.e. M/s. National Securities
Depository Ltd. (NSDL) & M/s. Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL).

Statutory Compliance:
During the financial year 2012-13 under review, the Company has generally complied with all the applicable
provisions, filed all returns, forms etc. & furnished all the relevant particulars as required under the Companies
Act, 1956 and allied Acts/Rules, the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Regulations and the Listing
Agreements.

Outstanding GDR / ADR / Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and its impact on equity: Nil
Plant Locations:
The Company has the following manufacturing plants as of 31st March, 2013:

Chennai Plant Chinchwad Plant
Melakottaiyur via Vandalur, Akurdi, Chinchwad,
Chennai - 600 048. Pune - 411 019.
Tamil Nadu, INDIA Maharashtra, INDIA

Raipur Plant Silvassa Plant
Bilaspur Road, Survey No. 59/11/-1,
Industrial Estate, Khanvel Road, Opp. Gulf Oil,
Raipur - 493 221. Masat, Silvassa - 396 230.
Chattisgarh, INDIA U. T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli, INDIA

During the Q4 of FY 2012-13, the Company relocated / consolidated its Pimpri Plant operations with Chinchwad
Plant at Pune, Maharashtra, India.

Address for Correspondence:
ADOR WELDING LIMITED
Ador House, 4th Floor, 6, K. Dubash Marg, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001-16, Maharastra, INDIA.

B) Non Mandatory Requirements
• Chairman of the Board:

The Company has an Executive Chairman and hence the requirement pertaining to reimbursement of
expenses to a Non - Executive Chairman does not arise.

• Remuneration Committee:
The Company has a Remuneration Committee. Please refer paragraph 4 under Mandatory Requirements.

• Shareholder Rights:
As the Company’s financial results are published in English newspaper having a wide circulation all over
India and in Marathi newspaper widely circulated in Mumbai (Maharashtra), the same are not sent to
the shareholders of the Company, individually. The Company’s Quarterly / Half Yearly / Annual Audited
Results are also posted on to the Company’s website.

• Audit Qualifications:
There are no qualifications in the Auditor’s Report.

• Training of Board Members:
The necessary training will be provided to the Board Members, as and when required.

• Mechanism to evaluate Non-Executive Board Members:
The Board of Directors does not feel the necessity of evaluating the performance of its Non-Executive
Directors.

• Whistle Blower Policy:
The Company has not yet formulated Whistle Blower Policy. Nonetheless, the Company takes cognizance
of the complaints & suggestions made by the employees through ‘I-suggest’ forum or ‘Talk to your MD’
sessions, by initiating suitable corrective steps, wherever necessary.



6 0  A n n u a l R e p o r t  t h

39

ANNUAL CERTIFICATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR
DECLARATION PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 49 I (D) (ii) OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

As the Managing Director of Ador Welding Limited and as required pursuant to Clause 49 I (D) (ii) of the Listing
Agreement, I hereby declare and certify that all the Board Members and Senior Management personnel of Ador
Welding Limited have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the Company for the
Financial Year 2012-13.

For ADOR WELDING LIMITED

Place: Mumbai S. M. Bhat
Date: 15th May, 2013 Managing Director

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF
CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
the Members of
Ador Welding Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Ador Welding Limited, for the
year ended 31st March, 2013, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement(s) of the said Company with
stock exchanges in India.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our examination was carried out in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate
Governance (as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India and was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on
the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned
Listing Agreement.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Dalal & Shah
Firm Registration No. :102021W

Chartered Accountants

S. Venkatesh
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: 15th May, 2013 Membership Number: 037942
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ANNEXURE III – TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

A. BUSINESS SCENARIO AND PERFORMANCE SNAP
SHOT

During the Financial Year (FY) 2012-13, the Indian
Economy experienced GDP growth slip to below
5%, mainly on account of slowdown in
performance within manufacturing, agriculture and
service sectors. In addition to a slowing GDP
growth, the economy also exper ienced an
average inflation in excess of 9% for FY 2012-13,
with a peak inflation rate close to double digits in
the third quarter of the year. Compounded to this
was the liquidity crunch which was experienced
industry-wide during the entire year. A major
slowdown was observed in the power projects,
construction / infra projects and auto sector, which
are traditionally the growth engines for the Welding
Industry. Data published by Ministry of Statistics
demonstrates that the production of Welding
Consumables and Equipments for the period April
2012 to December 2012 was lower by 20% & 7%
respectively. Given the higher level of inflation, a
large number of the expected CAPEX investments
within relevant industries were postponed. This
resulted in significant price pressure across most
product lines within the welding industry in India
and impacted a large number of industry
participants by lowering profits.

Notwithstanding the unfavourable economic
environment, your Company pursued an aggressive
campaign to improve its market share and attain
growth. The Company registered Revenue growth
of 6.78% over last year. The Consumables business-
line grew by 7.36% over last year, whilst the
Equipment business-line which included the Project
Engineering Business (PEB), grew by 5.03%. The
marketing drive was spearheaded by a sustained
expansion of our customer base, product range &
distribution network. Continuous efforts over the last
3 years in improving the effectiveness of Field Sales
Management, in retaining existing customers as
well as in gaining new customers created a funnel
of opportunities which will be harnessed on a
continuous basis.

Even though the Consumables Business grew by
over 7% in turnover & by over 10% in profitability,
the profitability of Equipment Business (inclusive of
PEB) dropped by over 13%. As a result of this, the
overall PBT dropped by over 5% compared to last

year. This was mainly due to our inability to fully
pass on the impact of Raw Material cost increases
to customers, particularly in the Equipment Business.

Special products developed during the FY 2012-
13 and offered to customers for critical applications
of fabrication in the Oil & Gas Sector, Power sector
and Equipment Fabrication with Technical Delivery
Conditions (TDCs), were well accepted by them
due to Stringent Quality Assurance practices
followed by the Company. Our quality labs are
regularly upgraded to provide certification of
stringent performance qualifications demanded for
new welding applications in the growing infra
sector.

B. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT

The Industry continues to remain fragmented
between organized players and un-organized
players, both in the consumables and equipment
sectors.

In the equipment sector, the market is fast moving
towards inverter technology. Your Company has
developed entire range of inverter technology
equipments for all the processes.

C. OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS / RISKS

OPPORTUNITIES

Our preparedness in Product R&D to have the
fastest time to market & our preparedness in
Process R&D to offer quick solutions to all market
segments including Transportation, Energy, Process
Industries, Infrastructure, Shipbuilding, etc. makes
us the preferred choice of our Customers. Our
extensive manufacturing footprint and large
manufacturing capacities will help us to be ready
to meet the demand of any Geographic Segments
& more pertinently, to meet any demand upswings
in the shortest possible time. Our broad field force
deployment enables us to be the fastest welding
solution provider to all parts of the country.

THREATS / RISKS

The slowing down of the market, thereby creating
a large surplus of supply over demand is a key
threat. The liquidity crunch in the market increases
risk of credit extensions. The Money supply cycle
to Distributors is lengthened causing depletion in
ROI & may result in lower focus for this business
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segment by the distributors. Sluggish growth may
not have the ability to give returns on all the new
products and that can affect the business.

D. INCOME STATEMENT ANALYSIS

The total operating revenues for the year reported
a growth of 6.78%. The total Consumable business
for the year was over Rs.282 Crore registering a
growth of about 7.35% compared to the previous
year. The Equipment business was over Rs.82 Crore
registering a growth of around 5 % compared to
the previous year.

Other income earned was at Rs.3.61 Crore
(LY Rs.3.51 Crore) which was mainly accrued from
prudent Management of Investments and FOREX.
The total Expenditure to Sales was higher at 94%
(LY 93%) majorly on account of material costs to
sales, which were 65 % (LY 64%). The sales product
mix grew more in favour of solid wires, which
conventionally have lower margins. We are
continuously working towards improving the
product mix through high-value electrodes and
wires in the oil & gas, power, nuclear sectors and
have obtained specific approvals as well as initial
orders in this year. Strategic sourcing of raw
materials is another area of focus that we have
provided to adequately face challenges of this
nature.

Manufacturing Costs to Materials have decreased
to 9.97% as compared to 10.44% last year. Despite
the increase in energy costs etc., the company’s
manufacturing plants managed to keep their
expenses under control. Also various initiatives
taken at plants like Lean Manufacturing etc.
helped us reduce the expenses. Effective control
measures are being continuously explored to see
that the manufacturing expenses, as a ratio to sales
are consistently optimised.

The effective tax rate for the year has increased
from 26% to 28%, mainly due to the decrease in
profits from Silvassa Unit. The EBIDTA was lower at
Rs.40 Crore (LY Rs.41 Crore), despite higher sales,
on account of the lower contribution per unit sales.

E. BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS

The Company funded all its operating expenses
and capital investments from internal accruals.
However Investments decreased by Rs.3.62 Crore
(LY increase Rs.10.58 Crore) as a result of
encashment of surplus cash in Mutual Funds for
investing in subsidiaries.

Due to improved and strict Management of
Manufacturing Inventories, the inventory holding
period was 44 days in the current year, as against
57 days in the previous year. This status is
notwithstanding the strategic decision to hold
inventory of critical long lead time raw materials.
Debtors were at 73 days as at 31st March, 2013
which were 39 days last year, as at 31st March,
2012. Creditors as at 31st March, 2013 were at 55
days (LY 35 days), due to regular negotiations with
critical suppliers for best price and supply terms.

F. OUTLOOK

The Outlook for the FY 2013-14 looks mixed, as of
now, due to tight money circulation & supply, with
no signs of increase in Capital investment in the
near future. However your Company is confident
to meet its targeted objective in the year by
increasing its market share, which will mainly be
fulfilled through offering new products to business
lines in the existing & new markets and increasing
our share with existing products in the new &
existing markets. The key strategic differentiator will
be our total solution rendering approach to our
Customers. Our introduction of a new range of
products & CNC cutting machines along with
introduction of automation technology aided by
game changing process technology - “Plasma
MIG” from Plasma Laser Technologies (PLT), our
overseas subsidiary, corroborates our position as
most innovative & preferred partner for the Indian
Customer.

Moreover, our strategy to also focus the bottom of
the pyramid market with a new range of products
& services should give a real boost to our market
share, aided by the largest R&D set up within the
Indian Welding industry, in the Private Sector will
help us to have the fastest time to market for our
products. As a learning organisation, which has
embraced Lean Management as a part of its life,
continuous improvement & business process
innovation makes us improve our operational
efficiency continuously. These will help us to take a
sure footed step of growth towards our set goals
for this year.

G. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

During the year the Company made two strategic
investments in subsidiaries viz.

i) Ador Welding Academy Private Limited and

ii) Plasma Laser Technologies Limited.
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Ador Welding Academy Pvt. Ltd. (AWAPL), provides
consultancy in welding processes to the customers
and also imparts quality training in the Welding
space to create new welders & upgrade the skill
sets of the existing welders.

Plasma Laser Technologies Ltd. (PLT), an overseas
Company, was founded by a core group of
scientists and welding engineers, previously from
the Paton Welding Institute of Kiev, Ukraine, a world-
leading institute in welding technologies. The
Company is engaged in the development of High
Tech Plasma MIG welding technology for
manufacture of Automobiles, Ship building, Pipes,
Wear Plates, etc.

H. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company strongly believes that effective
internal controls are inherent to the principle of
good corporate governance and freedom of
Management should be exercised within the
framework of appropriate checks & restraints.

The Company has therefore evolved a system of
internal control comprising of authority level &
power, supervision, checks & balances, planning &
procedures. The system is reviewed and updated
on an on going basis. These systems cover the
following aspects of business process and reporting:

• Financial propriety of business transactions.

• Accurate reporting of the financial
transactions, as per the applicable Accounting
Standards.

• Efficient use and protection of resources of the
Company.

• Compliance with the established Company
policies, guidelines and statutes.

• The Company has in place a well defined
Internal Audit System. The scope of the audit is
approved by the Audit Committee. The audit
plan is focused on the following objectives:

• All operational and related activities are
performed efficiently & effectively.

• Review of all Management Risks.

• Significant legislative and regulatory provisions
impacting the organization are recognized
and addressed appropriately ensuring that all
the relevant / applicable statutory
compliances are complied with.

• Opportunities identified during audit for
improving management control, process
efficiency are communicated and acted
upon.

The Audit Committee consisting of Independent
Directors, reviews the Internal Audit Reports and
offers necessary guidance with respect to their
adequacy & scope.

The Company has a sound ERP system. During the
year the Company undertook an exercise to check
if the ERP system is being used optimally. It is our
ardent resolve to see to it that the usage of the
ERP system is maximised to improve the reporting
aspects, thereby improving the effectiveness of our
Cost Reduction mission and the efficiency &
integrity of financial reporting, for improved
decision making.

The strengthening of our ERP system has made our
Financial and Accounting Management Systems
more robust.

The Company has a very good compliance track
record with all Legal and Statutory entities in the
Country, and there is a regular audit mechanism
to ensure that the Company does not violate any
of the Legal or Statutory provisions applicable to
the Company or Industry.

I. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company firmly believes that the employees
are its key assets which differentiate us from our
competitors.

The HR initiatives in the Company are primarily
aimed to address two critical objectives:

1. Improve our Business

2. Make our Company as one of the Best Places
to Work.

In order to remain the best welding Company in
Market, we are attracting and retaining motivated
individuals. This includes offering industry-leading
training & development programs and
encouraging the ambitions & interests of our
employees by supporting them with strong career
development opportunities. We provide learning
and growth opportunities not only to the
experienced workforce but also to fresh talent.
As a result of the above, our attr ition rates
have dropped significantly dur ing the
year. The Company had 776 employees as at
31st March, 2013.
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There are various Employee friendly HR policies
designed taking into account employee specific
needs. These HR policies are being reviewed and
benchmarked with world class organizations. Many
initiatives like ‘TALK to your MD’, ‘MDs Town Hall’
are aimed at empowering every employee in AWL
to speak directly to top Management, give ideas,
think innovation and discuss areas of improvement
which will help plugging loopholes and gaps that

may exist in our work processes. Other Employee
engagement initiatives such as Adorable Employee
& Distributor of the Quarter, Long Service Awards
have increased motivation and enthusiasm levels
among employees. The Company has also
implemented a suggestion scheme for
encouraging participation of all categories of
employees in the growth of the Company.

Disclaimer:

The information and opinion expressed in this section of the Annual Report may contain certain forward looking
statements, which the Management believes are true to the best of its knowledge at the time of its preparation.
The Company and the Management shall not be held liable for any loss, which may arise, as a result of any
action taken on the basis of the information contained herein.
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Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial
statements of Ador Welding Limited (the
“Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2013, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory
information, which we have signed under
reference to this report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

2. The Company’s Management is responsible for the
preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Accounting
Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section
211 of ‘the Companies Act, 1956’ of India (the
“Act”). This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence, about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those r isk

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Ador Welding Limited

assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by Management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

6. In our opinion, and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us,
the accompanying financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India:

(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2013;

(b) In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss,
of the profit for the year ended on that date;
and

(c) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

7. As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2003’, as amended by ‘the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) (Amendment) Order, 2004’,
issued by the Central Government of India in terms
of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act
(hereinafter referred to as the “Order”), and on
the basis of such checks of the books and records
of the Company as we considered appropriate
and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we give in the Annexure a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of
the Order.
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8. As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report
that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and
Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books
of account;

(d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement
of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this report comply with the

Accounting Standards referred to in sub-
section (3C) of section 211 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of written representations
received from the directors as on March 31,
2013, and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2013, from being appointed
as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-
section (1) of section 274 of the Act.

For Dalal & Shah
Firm Registration number: 102021W

Chartered Accountants

S. Venkatesh
Mumbai, Partner
15th May, 2013 Membership Number: 037942
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ANNEXURE TO AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 7 of the Auditors' Report of even date to the Members of ADOR WELDING LIMITED on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013.

1. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the
Management according to a phased
programme designed to cover all the items
over a period of three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion
of the fixed assets has been physically verified
by the Management during the year and no
material discrepancies between the book
records and the physical inventory have been
noticed on such verification.

(c) In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a
substantial part of fixed assets has not been
disposed of by the Company during the year.

2. (a) The inventory has been physically verified by
the Management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable.

(b) In our opinion, the procedures of physical
verification of inventory followed by the
Management are reasonable and adequate
in relation to the size of the Company and the
nature of its business.

(c) On the basis of our examination of the
inventory records, in our opinion, the Company
is maintaining proper records of inventory. The
discrepancies noticed on physical verification
of inventory as compared to book records
were not material.

3. The Company has not granted/taken any loans,
secured or unsecured, to / from companies, firms
or other parties covered in the register maintained
under Section 301 of the Act.

Therefore the provisions of clause 4 (iii)(b), (iii)(c),
(iii)(d), (iii)(f) and (iii)(g) of the said Order, are not
applicable to the Company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, there is an adequate
internal control system commensurate with the size
of the Company and the nature of its business for

the purchase of inventory, fixed assets and for the
sale of goods and services. Further, on the basis of
our examination of the books and records of the
Company, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come
across nor have been informed of any continuing
failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid
internal control system.

5. (a) In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the
particulars of contracts or arrangements
referred to in Section 301 of the Act have been
entered in the register required to be
maintained under that section.

(b) In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the
transactions made in pursuance of contracts
or arrangements and exceeding the value of
Rupees Five Lakhs in respect of any party
during the year have been made at prices
which are reasonable having regard to the
prevailing market at the relevant time.

6. The Company has not accepted any deposits from
the public within the meaning of Sections 58A and
58AA of the Act and the rules framed there under.

7. In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit
system commensurate with its size and nature of
its business.

8. We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintained by the Company in respect of products
where, pursuant to the Rules made by the Central
Government of India, the maintenance of cost
records has been prescribed under clause (d) of
sub-section (1) of Section 209 of the Act, and are
of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a
detailed examination of the records with a view
to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

9. (a) According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company
is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, investor
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education and protection fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth
tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty and
other material statutory dues as applicable
with the appropriate authorities.

(b) On the basis of our examination of the
documents and records, and explanations and
information given to us, there were no disputed
dues in respect of custom duty, income-tax,
wealth-tax and service-tax as at 31st March,
2013. The following disputed dues on account
of Excise duty and sales tax have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities:

Nature of Amount Year to which Forum where the
Dues (Rs. lacs) it relates dispute is pending

Excise Duty 80.75 2001-02 Customs, Excise and
Service Tax

1.14 2006-07  Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT)

16.28 1998-99,2008-09 Tribunal West Zone Mumbai

Sales Tax 23.15 1987-88, 1992-93 Lucknow High Court

35.16 2003-2005 Joint Commissioner of Sales
Tax-Jamshedpur

10. The Company has no accumulated losses as at
March 31, 2013 and it has not incurred any cash
losses in the financial year ended on that date or
in the immediately preceding financial year.

11. According to the records of the Company
examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to any bank as at
the balance sheet date. The Company has not
obtained any borrowings from any financial
institution or by way of debentures.

12. The Company has not granted any loans and
advances on the basis of security by way of pledge
of shares, debentures and other secur ities.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 4(xii) of the Order,
are not applicable to the Company.

13. As the provisions of any special statute applicable
to chit fund/ nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/ societies
are not applicable to the Company. The provisions
of clause 4(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

14. In our opinion, the Company has maintained
proper records of transaction and contracts
relating to dealing or trading in shares, securities,
debentures and other investments during the year
and timely entries have been made therein. Further,

such securities have been held by the Company
in its own name.

15. In our opinion, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the terms and
conditions of the guarantees given by the
Company for loans taken by others from banks
during the year, are not prejudicial to the interest
of the Company.

16. The Company has not raised any term loans.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xvi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

17. On the basis of an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, in our opinion and
according to the information and explanations
given to us, there are no funds raised on a short-
term basis which have been used for long-term
investment.

18. The Company has not made any preferential
allotment of shares to parties and companies
covered in the register maintained under Section
301 of the Act during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 4(xviii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

19. The Company has not issued any debentures
during the year, and also does not have any
debentures outstanding as at the year end.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

20. The Company has not raised any money by public
issue during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 4(xx) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

21. During the course of our examination of the books
and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of fraud on or by the
Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of such case by the
Management.

For Dalal & Shah
Firm Registration Number: 102021W

Chartered Accountants

S. Venkatesh
Mumbai Partner
May 15, 2013 Membership Number : 037942
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2013
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Note No. As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ Funds

(a) Share Capital 1 1,359.85 1,359.85
(b) Reserves and Surplus 2 17,102.92 16,149.47

(2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 3 140.36 107.38
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 4 43.58 56.04

(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 5 0.00 0.00
(b) Trade payables 6 3,402.74 2,114.96
(c) Other current liabilities 7 1,734.47 1,876.80
(d) Short-term provisions 8 1,685.37 1,637.56

Total 25,469.29 23,302.06

II. ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets

(a) Fixed assets 9
(i) Tangible assets 8,088.20 7,679.92
(ii) Intangible assets 18.02 20.89
(iii) Capital work-in-progress 45.40 198.08

(b) Non-current investments 10 786.64 350.02
(c) Long term loans and advances 11 203.47 281.67
(d) Other non-current assets 12 854.71 718.65

(2) Current Assets
(a) Current investments 13 2,478.56 3,276.69
(b) Inventories 14 4,366.38 5,322.26
(c) Trade receivables 15 7,257.69 3,657.54
(d) Cash and Bank balances 16 353.55 534.29
(e) Short-term loans and advances 17 568.60 939.52
(f) Other current assets 18 448.07 322.53

Total 25,469.29 23,302.06

The Notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our attached report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For DALAL & SHAH
Firm Registration No: 102021W A.B.Advani
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman

S.Venkatesh V.M.Bhide Joseph Mani S.M.Bhat
Partner Head-Corporate Administration Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
Membership No.: 037942 & Company Secretary

Mumbai, 15th May, 2013 Mumbai, 15th May, 2013
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2013
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Note No. 2012-13 2011-12

I. Revenue from operations 19 40,201.64 37,248.77

Less : Excise Duty 3,784.33 3,158.14

Revenue from operations (net) 36,417.31 34,090.63

II. Other Income 20 361.37 351.37

III. Total Revenue (I + II) 36,778.68 34,442.00

IV. Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 21 23,330.81 22,013.15

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 21 A 180.13 122.41

Changes in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 22 209.25 (304.65)

Employee benefit expense 23 3,596.45 3,253.74

Finance costs 24 81.57 87.89

Depreciation and amortization expense 1,234.06 1,244.54

Other expenses 25 5,481.67 5,212.86

Total Expenses 34,113.94 31,629.94

V. Profit before tax (III - IV) 2,664.74 2,812.06

VI. Tax expense:

Current tax (769.00) (737.00)

Deferred tax credit 12.46 8.84

Excess/(short) provision of taxes (0.18) 5.21

VII. Profit for the year after tax (V - VI) 1,908.02 2,089.11

VIII. Earnings per equity share:

Basic and Diluted 37 14.03 15.36

The Notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our attached report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For DALAL & SHAH
Firm Registration No: 102021W A.B.Advani
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman

S.Venkatesh V.M.Bhide Joseph Mani S.M.Bhat
Partner Head-Corporate Administration Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
Membership No.: 037942 & Company Secretary

Mumbai, 15th May, 2013 Mumbai, 15th May, 2013
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2013
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

A) Cash Flow arising from Operating Activities
Net Profit before Tax 2,664.74 2,812.06

Add/(Less) :

a) Depreciation and amortization expense 1,234.06 1,244.54

b) Finance costs 81.57 87.89

c) Assets written off / discarded 5.30 4.96

d) Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 2.83 4.26

e) Interest received from Banks and Others (8.73) (8.93)

f) Interest received on Govt. Securities (18.76) (3.31)

g) Income from Mutual Funds (20.64) (102.88)

h) Surplus on Sale of Investments (133.52) (100.82)

1,142.11 1,125.71

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 3,806.85 3,937.77

Adjustment for :

a) (Increase) in Trade and Other Receivables (3,526.38) (1,155.69)

b) Decrease in Inventories 955.88 (413.72)

(2,570.50) (1,569.41)

1,236.35 2,368.36

Increase in Trade Payables 1,190.15 1,066.23

Cash Inflow From Operations 2,426.50 3,434.59

Add / (Less) :

Direct Tax paid (731.84) (597.10)

Cash Inflow in course of Operating Activities 1,694.66 2,837.49

B) Cash Flow arising from Investing Activities
Outflow:

a) Acquisition of Fixed Assets 1,430.12 1,138.79

b) Purchase of Investments 4,526.76 7,568.79

c) Investments in Subsidiaries 552.90 -

Inflow:

a) Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 26.55 29.64

b) Proceeds from Sale of Investments 5,574.70 6,611.14

c) Interest Received on Fixed Deposits 8.73 8.93

d) Interest received on Investments 4.65 3.31

e) Income from Mutual Funds 20.64 102.88

5,635.27 6,755.90

Net Cash (Outflow) in course of Investing Activities (874.51) (1,951.68)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2013
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

As per our attached report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For DALAL & SHAH
Firm Registration No: 102021W A.B.Advani
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman

S.Venkatesh V.M.Bhide Joseph Mani S.M.Bhat
Partner Head-Corporate Administration Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
Membership No.: 037942 & Company Secretary

Mumbai, 15th May, 2013 Mumbai, 15th May, 2013

C) Cash Flow arising from Financing Activities

Inflow :

Finance Lease 42.68 33.34

Outflow:

a) Finance costs 81.57 87.89
b) Dividend Paid 815.66 806.81
c) Dividend Tax Paid 132.36 132.36

1,029.59 1,027.06

Net Cash (Outflow) in course of Financing Activities (986.91) (993.72)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash / Cash
Equivalents (A+B+C) (166.76) (107.91)

Add :

Balance at the beginning of the year 382.33 490.24

Cash / Cash Equivalents at the close of the year - 215.57 382.33

Refer Note 16

The Notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :

(Rupees in lacs)Note 1 - Share Capital

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012
Authorised :
3,00,00,000 (Previous year 3,00,00,000) Equity Shares
of Rs.10/- each 3,000.00 3,000.00

Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid Up:
1,35,98,467 (Previous year 1,35,98,467) Equity Shares
of Rs.10/- each, fully paid-up 1,359.85 1,359.85

Total 1,359.85 1,359.85

Note 1a - Reconciliation of shares

As at 31st March, 2013 As at 31st March, 2012

Particulars No.of shares Rs.in lacs No.of shares Rs.in lacs

Equity shares:
Shares outstanding at the beginning
of the year 13,598,467 1,359.85 13,598,467 1,359.85
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 13,598,467 1,359.85 13,598,467 1,359.85

Note 1b - Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par (face) value of
Rs. 10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive the
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all the preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shareholding.

Note 1c - Shares held by Holding Company
As at As at

Particulars 31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

No. of shares No. of shares
Equity Shares
J.B.Advani & Co. Private Limited 68,00,531 68,00,531

Note 1d - Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of aggregate shares in the Company

As at 31st March, 2013 As at 31st March, 2012

Particulars No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding
held held

Equity Shares
J.B.Advani & Co. Private Limited 68,00,531 50.01 68,00,531 50.01
Reliance Capital Trustee Co. Limited 6,89,182 5.07 6,85,770 5.04

Total 74,89,713 55.08 74,86,301 55.05
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Note 2 - Reserves and Surplus

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2013 As at 31st March, 2012

General Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 12,990.00 12,781.09
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss

Account 190.80 208.91

Balance at the end of the year 13,180.80 12,990.00
Capital Redemption Reserve Account 222.98 222.98
Surplus as per Profit and Loss Account
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,936.49 2,001.41
Add: Adjustment on account of excess

provision on dividend tax - 3.15
Add: Net Profit for the year 1,908.02 2,089.11
Less: Transfer to Reserves (190.80) (208.91)
Less: Proposed Dividend (815.91) (815.91)
Less: Tax on proposed Dividend @ (138.66) (132.36)
Balance at the end of the year 3,699.14 2,936.49

Total 17,102.92 16,149.47

@ Dividend proposed to be distributed to equity shareholders is Rs. 6/- (Previous year Rs.6/-) per
equity share.

Note 3 - Long-Term Borrowings (Unsecured)
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Long-term maturities of finance lease obligations 140.36 107.38

Total 140.36 107.38

Note 4 - Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Deferred Tax Liability on account of :
Depreciation 59.40 59.79
Capital Expenditure for Scientific Research 68.36 71.53

127.76 131.32
Deferred Tax Assets on account of :
Employee Benefits 78.72 73.57
VRS Payments 0.37 1.71
Provision for Doubtful Debts 5.09 -

84.18 75.28

Net Deferred Tax Liability Total 43.58 56.04
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Note 5 - Short Term Borrowings (Secured)
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Working Capital Loans from Banks (Refer Note below) - -

Total - -

(i) Working Capital facilities from Banks are secured by hypothecation of stocks and other tangible
movable assets of the Company, both, present & future and book debts in favour of Bank of
Baroda and HDFC Bank Limited. The said facilities are also secured by way of pari-passu charge on
the entire plant & machinery and other moveable fixed assets of the Company and on the land
and building at the Company’s Silvassa Unit.

(ii) Guarantees given by banks to third parties amounting to Rs.804.61 lacs; (Previous year Rs. 848.05
lacs) on behalf of the Company are secured against securities mentioned in (i) above.

Note 6 - Trade Payables

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(Refer Note 30) 170.82 212.94
Others 3,231.92 1,902.02

Total 3,402.74 2,114.96

Note 7 - Other Current Liabilities

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Current maturities of finance lease obligations 30.00 20.30
Other current liabilities 1,319.77 1,391.31
Unclaimed Dividend 133.35 147.32
Advance against Sales and Services 141.29 219.57
Deposits from distributors 110.06 98.30

Total 1,734.47 1,876.80

Note 8 - Short-Term Provisions
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Provision for Excise Duty on Finished Goods Stock 358.03 342.84
Provision for Employee Benefits 331.85 294.79
Provision for Warranties 37.00 48.79
Provision for Proposed Dividend 815.91 815.91
Provision for Tax on Proposed Dividend 138.66 132.36
Provision for Wealth Tax 3.92 2.87

Total 1,685.37 1,637.56
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NOTE 9 - Fixed Assets
(Rupees in lacs)

(A) Assets G R O S S B L O C K (AT COST / BOOK VALUE) D E P R E C I A T I O N N E T   B L O C K

As at Additions/ Deductions/ As at As at For the Deductions/ Upto As at As at
Particulars 01.04.2012 Adjustments Adjustments 31.03.2013 31.03.2012 Year Adjustments 31.03.2013 31.03.2013 31.03.2012

Tangible Assets
Land - Freehold 206.11 - - 206.11 - - - - 206.11 206.11
Land - Leasehold (a) 48.77 - 0.65(c) 48.12 - - - - 48.12 48.77
Buildings 5,308.22 705.35 (0.96) 6,014.53 2,290.06 301.36 (5.11) 2,596.53 3,418.00 3,018.16
Ownership Premises (b) 322.80 - - 322.80 163.64 7.96 - 171.60 151.20 159.16
Plant and Machinery 11,375.37 524.50 137.53 11,762.34 8,297.11 687.09 120.04 8,864.16 2,898.18 3,078.26
Electrical Installations 790.04 118.98 (2.65) 911.67 371.23 66.50 (2.26) 439.99 471.68 418.81
Furniture and Fixtures 665.21 113.20 23.44 754.97 495.00 38.02 17.43 515.59 239.38 170.21
Office Equipments 111.31 87.70 9.73 189.28 88.55 14.54 8.53 94.56 94.72 22.76
Vehicles 482.29 41.66 85.26 438.69 299.44 54.09 72.12 281.41 157.28 182.85
Temporary Shed 3.02 - - 3.02 3.02 - - 3.02 - -
Leased Assets - Vehicles 147.18 64.66 - 211.84 19.50 23.53 - 43.03 168.81 127.68
Research and Development Assets :
Land Freehold 33.61 - - 33.61 - - - - 33.61 33.61
Buildings 92.34 - 1.85 90.49 91.83 - 5.87 85.96 4.53 0.51
Furniture & Fixture 0.37 - 0.37 0.00 0.07 - 0.07 - - 0.30
Plant and Machinery 928.09 11.45 7.87 931.67 716.99 30.57 11.07 736.49 195.18 211.10
Air Conditioners 2.23 - - 2.23 0.60 0.23 - 0.83 1.40 1.63

TOTAL 20,516.96 1,667.50 263.09 21,921.37 12,837.04 1,223.89 227.76 13,833.17 8,088.20 7,679.92

Intangible Assets
Computer Software 276.00 6.65 - 282.65 255.11 9.52 - 264.63 18.02 20.89

TOTAL 20,792.96 1,674.15 263.09 22,204.02 13,092.15 1,233.41 227.76 14,097.80 8,106.22 7,700.81

Previous Year’s Total 19,960.91 1,097.72 265.67 20,792.96 12,074.42 1,243.89 226.16 13,092.15 7,700.81

(B) Capital Work-in-Progress 45.40 198.08

GRAND TOTAL 8,151.62 7,898.89

(a) Leasehold Land includes Land Rs.39.32 lacs (Net of amortisation Rs.38.84 lacs) acquired by the Company on a co-ownership/lease basis for which conveyance deed is yet to be executed.
(b) Includes :

(i) Rs.0.01 lac being the aggregate value of Shares in Co-operative Housing Societies.
(ii) Rs.4.17 lacs for Tenements in an Association of Apartment Owners.

(c) Represents amount written off on account of amortisation of leasehold land Rs.0.65 lac; (Previous year Rs. 0.65 lac)
(d) Net book value of assets, includes net book value of assets at the Company’s Ahmednagar division aggregating Rs. 62.41 lacs, which have been retired from active use. As per the estimates

made by the management,the net realisable value of such fixed assets would atleast be equal to the carrying value of the fixed assets. Hence, in the opinion of the management, no expected
loss needs to be recognised.

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

Depreciation for the year 1,233.41 1,243.89

Add: Amortisation 0.65 0.65

Depreciation and amortization 1,234.06 1,244.54

Note 10 - Non-Current Investments (At Cost) (Unquoted)
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

A) Long-Term Trade investments
Investments in subsidiary companies
i) Plasma Laser Technologies Ltd.

2,61,105 Series A Preferred shares of NIS 1.00 each 542.90 -
ii) Ador Welding Academy Pvt. Ltd.

1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 10.00 -
B) Other Long-Term Investments

i) 6 Years National Savings Certificates 0.03 0.02
ii) RECL Bonds (Non Convertible Redeemable

Taxable Bonds)- Series VIII 50.00 50.00
iii) Bond Application money for RECL Bonds

(Non Taxable Bonds) - 300.00
iv) Tax Free Secured Redeemable

Non-Convertible Bonds 183.71 -

Total 786.64 350.02
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Note 11 - Long-Term Loans and Advances

Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Sundry Deposits 137.93 117.29

Loans to Employees 8.85 12.01

Capital Advances 56.20 147.55

Other Loans and Advances-

- Prepaid Expenses 0.49 4.82

Total 203.47 281.67

Note 12 - Other Non-Current Assets

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Fixed Deposits for bank guarantees 56.70 54.75

Other Non Current Assets 1.31 6.09

VAT and Sales tax recoveries 791.70 657.81

Deposits with Banks with maturity of
more than twelve months 5.00 -

Total 854.71 718.65

Note 13 - Current Investments (Quoted)

Current Investments (At lower of Cost or Fair Value)

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

In Mutual Funds:

Templeton India Short Term Income Plan Fund - Growth

Nil (14,382.702 units) (Previous year NAV Rs.306.74 lacs) - 295.00

Templeton India Short Term Income Plan Fund -
Monthly Dividend

Nil (8,962.228 units) (Previous year NAV Rs.103.99 lacs) - 103.19

Templeton India Short Term Income Plan Fund -
Quarterly Dividend

Nil (7,760.618 units) (Previous year NAV Rs.90.00 lacs) - 90.00
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Note 13 - Current Investments (Quoted) (Contd.)

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Reliance Income Fund - Growth Option

Nil (11,47,667.509 units) (Previous year NAV Rs.399.41 lacs) - 400.00

Tata Fixed Income Portfolio Fund -
Scheme B3 Inst Quarterly Dividend

Nil (10,00,000 units) (Previous year NAV Rs.100.07 lacs) - 100.00

Tata Fixed Maturity Plan Series 38 A - Growth

25,00,000 units of Rs.10/- each (25,00,000 units)

NAV Rs.287.52 lacs (Previous year NAV Rs.262.92 lacs) 250.00 250.00

Tata Fixed Maturity Plan Series 39 F - Growth

10,00,000 units of Rs.10/- each (10,00,000 units)

NAV Rs.110.49 lacs (Previous year NAV Rs.100.71 lacs) 100.00 100.00

Kotak Fixed Maturity Plan Series 61- Growth

20,00,000 units of Rs.10/- each (20,00,000 units)

NAV Rs. 227.25 lacs (Previous year NAV Rs.206.70 lacs) 200.00 200.00

Kotak Fixed Maturity Plan Series 71- Growth

10,00,000 units of Rs.10/- each (10,00,000 units)

NAV Rs. 111.40 lacs (Previous year NAV Rs.101.26 lacs) 100.00 100.00

Kotak Fixed Maturity Plan Series 81- Growth

10,00,000 units of Rs.10/- each (10,00,000 units)

NAV Rs. 110.66 lacs (Previous year NAV Rs.100 lacs) 100.00 100.00

Kotak Bond Regular - Growth

Nil (3,30,517.326 units) (Previous year NAV Rs.100.18 lacs) - 100.00

Birla Sun Life Dynamic Bond Fund - Retail Plan -
Monthly Dividend

Nil (10,85,063.824 units) (Previous year NAV Rs.114.03 lacs) - 115.07

IDFC-SSIF-Short Term Income Plan A- Fortnightly Dividend

Nil (25,35,101.256 units) (Previous year NAV Rs.259.72 lacs) - 259.80

IDFC Fixed Maturity Plan Yearly Series 56 - Growth

Nil (10,00,000 units) (Previous year NAV Rs.102.59 lacs) - 100.00

Canara Robeco Income Fund - Growth

Nil (13,41,331.408 units) (Previous year NAV Rs.300.30 lacs) - 300.00



6 0  A n n u a l R e p o r t  t h

58

Note 13 - Current Investments (Quoted) (Contd.)

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

JP Morgan Short Term Income Fund - Fort Nightly Dividend

Nil (5,98,568.436 units) (Previous year NAV Rs.60.00 lacs) - 60.00

JP Morgan Short Term Income Fund - Monthly Dividend

Nil (6,96,383.804 units) (Previous year NAV Rs.70.00 lacs) - 70.00

JP Morgan Short Term Income Fund - Growth

Nil (7,26,972.221 units) (Previous year NAV Rs.85.00 lacs) - 85.00

BNP Paribas Money Plus IP - Daily Dividend

Nil (45,00,668.524 units) (Previous year NAV Rs.450.33 lacs) - 450.33

Kotak Liquid Scheme Plan A - Growth

3,640.725 units at Rs. 1,000/- each

NAV Rs. 86.57 lacs 86.42 -

Reliance Floating Rate Fund - Short Term Plan -
Growth Plan - Growth Option

12,93,772.082 units of Rs. 10/- each

NAV Rs. 239.17 lacs 238.99 -

Reliance Income Fund - Growth Plan - Bonus Option

36,54,824.654 units of Rs. 10/- each (Includes
Bonus 13,70,559.245 units)

NAV Rs. 416.92 lacs 400.00 -

DSP Black Rock Short Term Fund - Regular Plan - Growth

5,28,714.418 units of Rs. 10/- each

NAV Rs. 105.46 lacs 105.27 -

BNP Paribas Flexi Debt Fund - Growth

17,42,018.829 units of Rs.10/- each

NAV Rs. 341.43 lacs 341.22 -

HDFC Short Term Plan - Growth

11,37,479.726 units of Rs.10/- each

NAV Rs. 257.08 lacs 256.66 -

Religare Bank Debt Fund - Growth

10,000 units of Rs. 1,000/- each

NAV Rs. 102.07 lacs 100.00 -
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Note 13 - Current Investments (Quoted) (Contd.)

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Religare Fixed Maturity Plan - Series XVIII - Plan C

20,00,000 units of Rs.10/- each

NAV Rs. 200.00 lacs 200.00 -

Less : Provision for Dimunition in Value of Investments

Birla Sun Life Dynamic Bond Fund - Retail Plan -
Monthly Dividend - (1.03)

IDFC-SSIF-Short Term Income Plan A- Fortnightly Dividend - (0.08)

Reliance Income Fund - Growth Option - (0.59)

Total 2,478.56 3,276.69

Note 14 - Inventories
(At Cost or Net Realisable Value, whichever is lower)

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

1) Stores, Spares, Parts, etc. 292.17 295.91

2) Raw Materials and Components and Packing Material
(includes in transit Rs.28.69 lacs; Previous year Rs.75.11 lacs) 1,474.96 2,233.04

3) Work in Progress 666.31 719.17

4) Finished Goods 1,851.12 1,976.64

5) Stock in trade 81.82 97.50

Total 4,366.38 5,322.26

Note 15 - Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, considered good)

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

a) Outstanding for more than six months from the
date they are due for payment * 551.59 332.23

b) Others (Unsecured, considered good) 6,706.10 3,325.31

c) Others (Unsecured, considered doubtful) 17.18 3.07

Less : Provision for doubtful debts (17.18) (3.07)

Total 7,257.69 3,657.54

* Includes an amount of Rs.176.49 lacs (Previous year Rs.163.22 lacs) on account of retention money
of Project Engineering Business
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Note 16 - Cash and Bank Balances
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
i) Cash on hand 3.83 3.78
ii) Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 211.74 378.55

215.57 382.33
Other Bank Balances:
i) Earmarked Balances with Banks

(Dividend accounts) 133.20 147.42

ii) Deposits with Banks with maturity of more than
three months and less than twelve months 4.78 4.54

137.98 151.96

Total 353.55 534.29

Note 17 - Short-Term Loans and Advances
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Loans and Advances to Employees 25.14 23.70
Loans and Advance to Related Parties 5.92 5.09
Balances with Central Excise, Customs and Port Trust 3.54 9.78
Sundry Deposits 5.33 55.19
Other Loans and Advances :-
Advance to suppliers 220.38 462.74
Export Incentive Receivable 130.12 130.12
Others 107.01 145.45
Advance payment of Income Tax (Net of provisions) 71.16 107.45

Total 568.60 939.52

Note 18 - Other Current Assets
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

VAT and Sales Tax Receivables 323.78 294.72
Forward Exchange Difference Receivable 1.95 -
Receivable from subsidiary 11.30 -
Others 111.04 27.81

Total 448.07 322.53
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Note 19 - Revenue from Operations

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Sale of Products 40,108.21 37,099.21
Other Operating Revenue 93.43 149.56

Total 40,201.64 37,248.77

Details of sale of products (net of excise duty):

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Manufactured Goods

Electrodes 19,458.93 18,029.92

Wires & Fluxes 8,850.79 8,041.44

Equipments & Spares 5,233.56 5,868.96

Project Engineering Business 2,516.32 36,059.60 1,915.82 33,856.14

Traded Goods

Welding products 264.28 264.28 84.93 84.93

Total 36,323.88 33,941.07

During the year there are no revenues to be recognised under the percentage of completion method.

Note 20 - Other Income

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Interest received on Govt. Securities 18.76 3.31

Interest received from Banks and Others 8.73 8.93

Surplus on sale of current investments 133.52 100.82

Refund of Sales tax on Assessment 2.88 -

Income from Mutual Funds 20.64 102.88

Rent and Compensation 24.65 25.07

Royalty received 5.14 4.75

Exchange difference gain (net) 109.33 77.69

Other Non Operating Income 37.72 27.92

Total 361.37 351.37
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Note 21 - Cost of Materials Consumed

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Opening Stock 2,157.93 2,193.02

Add: Purchases during the year 22,619.15 21,978.06

Less: Closing Stock (1,446.27) (2,157.93)

Total 23,330.81 22,013.15

Details of Raw Materials and Components consumed:
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Wires and Rods 12,236.67 11,756.53

Titanium Dioxide and Rutile Sand 3,847.23 2,875.09

Manganese 704.35 710.04

Metal, Nickel and Iron Powder 530.95 656.08

Electrical Components 1,122.90 885.70

Mechanical Fittings 2,623.96 2,713.73

Others 2,264.75 2,415.98

Total 23,330.81 22,013.15

Value of Imported and Indigenous Raw Materials and Components consumed:

Particulars Year ended 31st March, 2013 Year ended 31st March, 2012

Rs.in lacs % Rs.in lacs %

Imported 2,138.85 9.17 1,302.27 5.92

Indigenous 21,191.96 90.83 20,710.88 94.08

Total 23,330.81 100.00 22,013.15 100.00

Note 21A - Details of Purchase of Stock-in-trade

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Welding products 180.13 122.41

Total 180.13 122.41
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Note 22 - Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-trade
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Opening Stock
Finished Goods 1,976.64 1,360.84
Stock-in-trade 97.50 91.72
Work-in-Progress 719.17 863.73

2,793.31 2,316.29
Closing Stock
Finished Goods 1,851.12 1,976.64
Stock-in-trade 81.82 97.50
Work-in-Progress 666.31 719.17

2,599.25 2,793.31
Add/(Less):Variation in Excise Duty

on opening and closing
stock of finished goods 15.19 172.37

Total 209.25 (304.65)

Details of Finished Goods (Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Closing Stock Opening Stock

31.03.2013 31.03.2012 01.04.2012 01.04.2011

Manufactured Goods
Electrodes 890.22 919.33 919.33 544.50
Wires & Fluxes 647.79 558.66 558.66 256.62
Equipment 313.11 498.65 498.65 559.72
Project Engineering Business - - - -

Total 1,851.12 1,976.64 1,976.64 1,360.84

Details of Stock-in-Trade (Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Closing Stock Opening Stock

31.03.2013 31.03.2012 01.04.2012 01.04.2011

Welding Products 81.82 97.50 97.50 91.72

Total 81.82 97.50 97.50 91.72

Details of Work-in-Progress (Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Closing Stock Opening Stock

31.03.2013 31.03.2012 01.04.2012 01.04.2011

Electrodes 286.11 270.49 270.49 375.11
Wires & Fluxes 224.81 259.88 259.88 276.70
Equipment 151.52 124.72 124.72 192.70
Project Engineering Business 3.87 64.08 64.08 19.22

Total 666.31 719.17 719.17 863.73
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Note 23 - Employee Benefit Expense

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Salaries and incentives 2,955.31 2,685.53
Contribution to
Provident and other funds 227.93 220.74
Staff Welfare expenses 413.21 347.47

Total 3,596.45 3,253.74

Note 24 - Finance Costs

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Interest Expense 30.31 25.54
Other borrowing costs 51.26 62.35

Total 81.57 87.89

Note 25 - Other Expenses

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Manufacturing expenses and other expenses - Refer Note 26 2,366.51 2,276.01
Electricity and Power expenses - Office 25.89 23.47
Rent 88.97 163.34
Freight 294.29 319.62
Legal and Professional fees 349.72 285.71
Insurance - Other than factory 21.81 25.26
Repairs and Maintenance - others 144.33 110.00
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle expenses 884.78 813.77
Directors Sitting Fees 5.54 6.15
Telephone, Postage & Telegram 200.85 182.35
Rates and Taxes - Office 63.42 36.13
Advertisement and Sales Promotion expenses 137.61 169.49
Commission paid 30.77 9.81
Bad Debts Written off 11.35 19.42
Provision for Doubtful Debts 15.00 3.07
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 2.83 4.26
Assets written off/ discarded 5.30 4.96
Printing and stationery 57.85 59.78
Audit Fees - Refer Note 27 37.31 34.74
Miscellaneous Expenses 737.54 665.52

Total 5,481.67 5,212.86
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Note 26 - Manufacturing and Other Expenses

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Consumption of Stores and spares 717.24 765.57
Power and Fuel 906.43 813.97
Repairs to Machinery 124.72 107.86
Repairs to Building 8.70 15.69
Other Manufacturing expenses 609.42 572.92

Total 2,366.51 2,276.01

Note 27 - Payments to Auditors

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2013 31st March, 2012

Audit Fees 22.00 22.00
Tax Audit fees 7.25 7.25
Certification and other matters 7.25 4.75
Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 0.81 0.74

Total 37.31 34.74

Value of Imported and Indigenous Stores and Spare parts consumed

Particulars Year ended 31st March, 2013 Year ended 31st March, 2012

Rs.in lacs % Rs.in lacs %

Imported 40.85 5.70 29.88 3.90
Indigenous 676.39 94.30 735.69 96.10

Total 717.24 100.00 765.57 100.00

Note 28 - Contingent Liabilities not provided for
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2013 As at 31.03.2012

a) Disputed Sales Tax as the matters are in appeal
(advance paid Rs.9.21 lacs; Previous year Rs.9.21 lacs) 67.52 67.52

b) Disputed Excise duties as the matters are in appeal
(advance paid Rs.2.04 lacs; Previous year Rs.3.15 lacs) 114.65 113.78

c) On account of bills discounted by the Company 129.81 999.98
d) Bonds / Undertakings given by the Company under

Concessional duty / exemption scheme / Waiver of
penalty to Customs Authorities 109.99 78.79

e) Standby Letter of Credit issued to Bank Hapoalim Ltd.
for loans taken by a subsidiary 187.39 -

f) Other matters 82.85 72.09
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Note 29 - Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed

(Rupees in lacs)

As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2013 31.03.2012

A) On Capital Account and not provided for
(Net of advances) 422.19 312.90

B) Other commitments - In February-2013, Ador Welding Ltd. has committed to continue providing its
financial support to M/s. Plasma Laser Technologies Ltd. (a subsidiary) during the years 2013 and
2014, whether by an additional capital contribution or by long term loans, as warranted.

Note 30 - Trade payables in Note 6 include

(Rupees in lacs)

As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2013 31.03.2012

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, 2006 and remaining unpaid as at year end 170.82 212.94

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,
2006 and remaining unpaid as at year end 3.55 0.80

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under
MSMED Act, 2006 for payments already made - -

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, 2006 beyond the appointed day during the year - -

Interest paid under section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006
paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 2006
beyond the appointed day during the year - -

Note 31 - In the opinion of the Management, no item of current assets, including inventories has a value on
realisation in the ordinary course of business, which is less than the amount at which it is stated in the
Balance Sheet.

Note 32 - Revenue expenditure incurred during the year on Research and Development, through the natural
heads of account, amounts to Rs. 448.76 lacs (Previous year Rs. 253.62 lacs) (including Depreciation
Rs. 30.80 lacs; Previous year Rs. 36.66 lacs) and Capital expenditure thereof amounts to Rs.11.45 lacs
(Previous year Rs. 64.27 lacs).
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Note 33 - A) Details of C.I.F. value of Imports (including in-transit)
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

Raw Materials and Components 2,082.07 1,232.88

Capital Goods 39.84 378.10

Spares, etc. 55.16 39.83

Purchase of goods for resale 280.11 87.33

B) Details of Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Travelling 83.24 45.66

Staff Training 0.06 0.02

Bank charges 15.95 20.04

Others (including Branch Office expenses) 181.84 170.11

Note 34 - A) Details of Earnings in Foreign Exchange
(Rupees in lacs)

2012-13 2011-12

F.O.B. Value of Exports (Net of Returns) 4,634.57 3,391.50

Commission received 24.50 3.71

Service charges received 1.61  -

B) *Details of Dividend remitted to Non-Resident
shareholders in Foreign Currency 2012-13 2011-12

Number of Non-Resident Shareholders 66 67

Number of Equity Shares held 9,463 9,613

Financial Year ended for which dividend is remitted 2011-12 2010-11

Amount of dividend remitted (Rs. in lac) 0.57 0.58

* excluding dividend credited to the shareholders’Non-Resident External Accounts with banks in India.
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Note 35 - Segment Information
A) Business Segment

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Consumables Equipments & Total
Project Engineering

Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year

Segment Revenue
External Revenue 28,214.91 26,281.15 8,202.40 7,809.48 36,417.31 34,090.63

Inter Segment Revenue - - - - - -

Total Revenue 28,214.91 26,281.15 8,202.40 7,809.48 36,417.31 34,090.63

Segment Result before Interest and tax 3,116.14 2,832.30 783.16 903.37 3,899.30 3,735.67

Add / (Less) :

Unallocable expenses

(Net of unallocable income) (1,152.99) (835.72)

Interest and Finance charges (net) (81.57) (87.89)

Excess / (Short) Provision of Taxes

In respect of earlier years (net) (0.18) 5.21

Provision for taxes (Net of Deferred Tax) (756.54) (728.16)

Net Profit 3,116.14 2,832.30 783.16 903.37 1,908.02 2,089.11

Other Information
Segment Assets 13,988.79 12,476.56 6,310.81 5,595.29 20,299.60 18,071.85

Unallocated Assets - - - - 5,169.69 5,230.21

Total Assets - - - - 25,469.29 23,302.06

Segment Liabilities 3,252.16 2,168.78 2,002.12 1,726.16 5,254.28 3,894.94

Unallocated Liabilities - - - - 1,752.24 1,897.80

Total Liabilities - - - - 7,006.52 5,792.74

Capital Expenditure
Segment Capital Expenditure 427.00 793.88 223.76 142.81 650.76 936.69

Unallocated Capital Expenditure - - - - 870.71 260.09

Total Capital Expenditure
(Tangible and Intangible Assets) - - - - 1,521.47 1,196.78

Depreciation and Amortisation
Segment Depreciation and Amortisation 836.56 849.44 279.63 312.67 1,116.19 1,162.11

Unallocated Depreciation and Amortisation - - - - 117.87 82.43

Total Depreciation and Amortisation - - - - 1,234.06 1,244.54

Significant Non-Cash Expenditure
Segment Significant Non-Cash Expenditure 5.30 - - 4.20 5.30 4.20

Unallocated Significant Non-Cash Expenditure - - - - - 0.76

Total Significant Non-Cash Expenditure - - - 4.20 5.30 4.96
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B) Geographical Segment

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars India Outside India Total

Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year

Segment Revenue 31,766.71 30,695.42 4,650.60 3,395.21 36,417.31 34,090.63

Carrying Amount of Segment Assets 19,071.75 17,645.01 1,227.85 426.84 20,299.60 18,071.85

Additions to Fixed Assets
(Tangible & Intangible Assets) 631.83 936.69 18.93 - 650.76 936.69

C) Other Disclosures
1. Segments have been identified in line with the Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (AS – 17)

taking into account the organisation structure as well as differential risks and returns of these segments.

2. The Company has disclosed Business Segment as the primary segment.

3. Types of Products and Services in each Business Segment:

Business Segment Types of Products and Services

a) Consumables - Electrodes, Wires, Agency Items related to consumables.

b) Equipment & Project Engineering - Equipment, Spares, Cutting Products and Agency items
related to Equipment and Cutting Products & Design,
Engineering, Procurement and Commissioning of Flares,
Incinerators, Furnaces, etc.

4. The Segment Revenues, Results, Assets and Liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to
each of the segment and amounts allocated on a reasonable basis.

Note 36 - Related Parties Disclosure
A) Relationships:

Relationship Name of the Person / Company

a) Holding Company J. B. Advani & Co. Pvt. Ltd.

b) Subsidiary Company & Plasma Laser Technologies Ltd.,
Fellow subsidiaries Ador Welding Academy Pvt. Ltd.

Plasma Laser Technologies, North America Inc.
Aluminium Hybrid Systems Ltd.

c) Investor having significant Ador Powertron Limited
influence and its associates Ador Fontech Limited

Ador Multiproducts Limited

d) Other related parties where Cryolor Asia Pacific Pvt. Ltd.
significant influence exists

e) Key Management Personnel Ms. A. B. Advani
Mr. Raman Kumar
Mr. S. M. Bhat

f) Relatives of Key Management No transactions have taken place during the year.
Personnel where transactions
have taken place
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B) Transactions:
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Holding Subsidiary Investors Other related Key
Company Company &  having parties where Management

Fellow significant significant Personnel
Subsidiaries influence and  influence

its Associates  exists

Sales and Services      
Goods, Materials and Services
{Ador Multiproducts Ltd.
Rs. 473.96 lacs, (Rs.551.34 lacs),
Ador Fontech Ltd.
Rs.380.33 lacs 34.71 35.82 874.27 8.09 -
(Rs.186.29 lacs)} (39.14) (-) (757.16) (85.01) (-)
Other Income      
Rent {Ador Fontech Ltd.
Rs.3.84 lacs (Rs.4.52 lacs),
Ador Powertron Ltd. - 0.73 6.64 - -
Rs.2.80 lacs (Rs.2.94 lacs)} (-) (-) (7.46) (-) (-)
Royalty {Ador Fontech Ltd.
Rs.2.93 lacs (Rs.3.10 lacs)
Ador Powertron Ltd. - - 4.91 - -
Rs. 1.75 lacs (Rs.1.65 lacs)} (-) (-) (4.75) (-) (-)
Other Receipts 17.02 - 15.76 - -
Recovery of Expenses (7.51) (-) (12.09) (-) (-)
Purchases      
Goods and Agency Items
{Ador Fontech Ltd.
Rs. 1.16 lacs, (Nil)
Ador Powertron Ltd. 1,013.99 - 4.60 - -
Rs.2.92 lacs (Rs.7.19 lacs)} (1,290.67) (-) (8.75) (-) (-)
Fixed Assets {Ador Powertron - - 72.60 - -
Ltd. Rs.64.55 lacs} (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)
Expenses
Remuneration  - - - - 255.97 

(-) (-) (-) (-) (235.44)
Reimbursement of Expenses 28.58 - 19.38 - -

(12.63) (-) (-) (-) (-)
Outstanding
Receivables {Ador Fontech Ltd. -
Rs.42.00 lacs, Ador
Multiproducts Ltd. 13.03 36.55 62.86 8.06 -
Rs.7.38 lacs} (-) (-) (5.08) (10.65) (-)
Other Receivables - 11.30 - - -

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)
Payables {Ador Powertron Ltd. 197.49 8.14 1.49 - -
Rs.1.23 lacs} (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)
Investment in subsidiary
Plasma Laser Technologies Ltd. - 490.87 - - -
Ador Welding Academy - 10.00 - - -
Pvt. Ltd. 

(Figures in brackets indicate Previous year)
Notes: 1. Related Party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

2. The Company has issued Standby Letter of Credit to Bank Hapoalim Ltd. for Rs.187.39 lacs towards
security for loan taken by Plasma Laser Technologies Ltd.
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Note 37 - Computation of Profit for Earnings per Share

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

Profit for the year after tax 1,908.02 2,089.11

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 1,35,98,467 1,35,98,467

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share 14.03 15.36

Note 38 - Disclosure in respect of derivative instruments

Foreign currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments :

Particulars USD EURO DHMS

i) Debtors 18,26,506.54 - -
ii) Creditors 1,68,729.40 44,546.19 -
iii) Other Advances/Deposits 86,174.00 12,138.62 1,46,985.28
iv) Bank Balance 83,625.88 - 15,817.51
v) Other Liability - - 7,190.00

Note 39 - Employee Benefits
a) An amount of Rs.118.23 Lacs (Previous year Rs.106.86 lacs) towards Defined Contribution Plans is

recognised as expense in the Profit and Loss Account.

b) The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan as required under AS 15 (Revised 2005)
and the reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the Defined Benefit
Obligation.

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12
Change in present value of obligation

Obligation at beginning of the year 328.49 304.64

Current Service Cost 30.04 22.56

Interest Cost 29.32 21.59
Actuarial (gain) / loss 8.00 17.01

Benefits paid (93.31) (37.32)

Obligation at the end of the year 302.54 328.49

Change in Plan assets

Fair value of Plan assets at beginning of the year 281.52 273.68

Expected return on plan assets 22.62 18.05

Actuarial gain / (loss) (22.78) (3.86)

Contributions 46.97 30.96

Benefits paid (93.31) (37.32)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 235.02 281.52

Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value
of plan assets and amount recognized in the balance sheet:

Present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of 302.54 328.49
the year

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year (235.02) (281.52)

Net liability / (Asset) recognized in the Balance Sheet 67.52 46.97
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(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

Gratuity cost recognized for the year:

Current Service cost 30.04 22.56

Interest cost 29.32 21.59

Expected return on plan assets (22.62) (18.05)

Actuarial (gain) / loss 30.78 20.87

Net gratuity cost 67.52 46.97

Break-up of Plan Assets at the end of the year
Government of India Securities 0% 0%

Corporate Bonds 0% 0%

Special Deposit Schemes 0% 0%

Equity shares of Listed Companies 0% 0%

Insurer Managed Funds 100% 100%

Others 0% 0%

Assumptions:
Interest rate 7.85% 8.25%

Estimated rate of return on plan assets 7.50% 7.50%

Rate of growth in salary levels* 8.00% 8.00%

* The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

Defined Benefit Plan for 5 Years

Gratuity 31.03.13 31.03.12 31.03.11 31.03.10 31.03.09

Net Asset/(Liability) recognised in
Balance Sheet

(a) Present Value of Obligation at the
close of the year 302.54 328.49 304.64 277.69 295.31

(b) Fair Value of Plan Assets at the
close of the year 235.02 281.52 273.68 279.27 228.24

(c) Asset / (Liability) recognised in
the Balance Sheet (67.52) (46.97) (30.96) 1.58 (67.07)

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation
(DBO) during the year ended

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss 8.00 17.01 10.18 (30.09) 72.52

Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

Actuarial Gain / (Loss) (22.78) (3.86) (0.40) (7.76) (1.70)
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c) Provident Fund Liability

In case of certain employees, the Provident Fund contribution is made to a Trust administered by
the Company.

In terms of the guidance note issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India, the actuary has provided
a valuation of Provident Fund  liability based on the assumptions listed below.

The following table gives the reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value
of the Defined Benefit Obligation:

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 842.18 -

Current Service Cost 46.25 -

Interest Cost 67.96 -

Actuarial (gain)/loss 93.59 -

Employees contribution 79.60 -

Liabilities assumed on Acquisition / (settled on Divestiture) 51.31 -

Benefits paid (205.57) -

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 975.32 842.18

Change in Fair Value of Assets

Opening Fair value of Plan assets 821.10 -

Expected return on plan assets 59.53 -

Actuarial gain / (loss) 90.34 -

Employer contributions during the period 46.25 -

Employee contributions during the period 79.60 -

Assets acquired on Acquisition / (distributed on Divestiture) 51.31 -

Benefits paid (205.57) -

Closing Fair value of Plan Assets 942.56 821.10

Break-up of Plan Assets at the end of the year

Government of India Securities 25% 25%

Corporate Bonds 33% 33%

Special Deposit Schemes 30% 30%

Equity shares of Listed companies 10% 10%

Others 2% 2%

Assumptions:

Discount rate 7.85% 8.65%

Expected rate of return on assets 7.53% 7.62%

Discount rate for the remaining term to maturity of the investment 7.94% 8.60%

Average historic yield on the investment 7.62% 7.57%

Guaranteed rate of return 8.50% 8.25%
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As per our attached report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For DALAL & SHAH A.B.Advani
Firm Registration No: 102021W Executive Chairman
Chartered Accountants

S.Venkatesh V.M.Bhide Joseph Mani S.M.Bhat
Partner Head-Corporate Administration Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
Membership No.: 037942 & Company Secretary

Mumbai, 15th May, 2013 Mumbai, 15th May, 2013

Note 40 - Lease Rental Obligation (Operating Lease)
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at As at
31.03.2013 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

Amount due within one year 21.70 37.37 136.88

Amount due from one year to five years 41.51 28.74 410.40

Amount due from five years and above 106.64 90.90 85.54

Note 41 - Lease Obligation (Finance Lease)

Net carrying amount of carrying assets as at Balance Sheet date - Rs.168.81 lacs

The minimum future lease rentals and present value of minimum lease rentals payable are as
follows:

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at As at As at
31.03.2013 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

Minimum lease rentals payable as on
Balance Sheet date 182.85 158.36 120.48

Present value of Minimum lease rentals
payable 162.53 140.77 104.58

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Minimum Lease Present Value of
Payment  Minimum Lease Payments

As at As at As at As at
31.03.2013 31.03.2012 31.03.2013 31.03.2012

Amount due within one year 72.81 51.96 64.72 46.19

Amount due from one year to five years 110.04 106.40 97.81 94.58

Amount due from five years and above - - - -

TOTAL 182.85 158.36 162.53 140.77

Note 42 - Significant accounting policies and practices adopted by the Company are as disclosed in the
Statement annexed to these Financial Statements as Annexure-I
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ANNEXURE - I

ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2013.

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices

I) Basis of preparation of financial statements :-

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in compliance, in
all material aspects, with the applicable accounting principles in India, the applicable Accounting Standards
notified under Section  211 (3C) and the other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule VI to the Companies Act,1956. Based on the
nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalent, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle to be 12 months for the
purpose of current-non current classification of assets and liabilities.

II) Use of Estimates :-

The preparation of financial statements, in confirmity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results
are known.

III) Recognition of Income and Expenditure :-

1. Sale of goods is recognized on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership which is generally
on the dispatch of goods by the Company.

2. Benefit on account of entitlement to import duty - free materials under Duty Entitlement Passbook
Scheme is accounted in the year of export as Export Incentives.

3. Other Revenue / Income and Cost / Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are
earned or incurred.

IV) Fixed Assets :-

1. Fixed Assets are accounted by the Company on the basis of historical costs. Gains or Losses arising on
disposal are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss Account of the relevant financial year.

2. Method of Depreciation / Amortisation:

a) Depreciation on all assets (except Freehold Land and Leased Vehicles) is provided on the written
down value method at the rates and in the manner specified in the Schedule XIV to the Companies
Act, 1956. Depreciation on assets acquired under finance lease is spread over the lease period or
useful life, whichever is shorter.

b) Cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of lease.

c) Depreciation on additions / deletions is charged on pro-rata basis, upto the month of purchase /
including the month of sale.

V) Investments :-

Long Term Investments are stated at 'Cost'. A provision for dimunition is made to recognise a decline, other
than temporary in the value of long term investments. Current Investments are stated at lower of cost and
fair value.

VI) Valuation of Inventories :-

Inventories of Raw Materials and Components, Work in progress, Finished Goods, Goods for Trade, Stores,
Spares and Packing Materials are stated 'at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower'. Goods in Transit
are stated 'at cost'. Cost comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
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bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The excise duty in respect of closing
inventory of finished goods is included as part of finished goods.

Cost formula used is 'Average Cost'. Due allowance is estimated and made for defective and obsolete
items, wherever necessary, based on the past experience of the Company.

VII) Foreign Currency Translations :-

All transactions in foreign currency, are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates when
the relevant transactions take place;

Monetary items in the form of Current Assets and Current Liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding at the
close of the year, are converted in Indian Currency at the appropriate rates of exchange prevailing on the
date of the Balance Sheet. Resultant gain or loss is accounted during the year;

In respect of Forward Exchange contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risks, the difference
between the forward rate and exchange rate at the inception of the contract is recognized as income or
expense over the life of the contract. Further, the exchange differences arising on such contracts are
recognised as income or expense along with the exchange differences on the underlying assets / liabilities.
Profit or loss on cancellations / renewals of forward contracts is recognised during the year.

Accounting of foreign branches / integral operations:-

a. Monetary items in the form of Current Assets and Current Liabilities in foreign currency,   outstanding at
the close of the year, are converted at the appropriate rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
the Balance Sheet.

b. Fixed assets and depreciation thereon, are converted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
acquisition of the respective asset.

c. Revenue items, excluding depreciation, are converted at the monthly exchange rates prevailing on
the date of the transaction.

VIII) Research and Development :-

1. Revenue expenditure on Research and Development (including overheads) are charged out as expense
through the natural heads of account in the year in which they are incurred.

2. Expenditure of a capital nature on Research and Development is debited to Fixed Assets and
depreciation is provided on such assets, as are depreciable.

IX) Retirement  and Other Employee Related Benefits :-

a. Short term employee benefits - All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the
service are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b. Post Employment / Retirement Benefits - Defined Contribution Plans such as Government Pension  Fund
etc., are charged to the Profit and Loss Account as incurred.

c. Defined Benefit Obligation Plans - The present value of the obligation under such plans, is determined
based on an actuarial valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method, carried out (approximately)
at the close of the year. Actuarial gains and losses arising on such valuation are recognised immediately
in the Profit and Loss Account. In the case of gratuity, which is funded, the fair value of the plan assets
is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on net
basis.

In respect of certain employees, the monthly contribution for Provident Fund is made to a Trust
administered by the Company. The interest payable by the Trust is notified by the Government. The
Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any.

The present value of obligation under Interest Rate Guarantee on Exempt Provident Funds, is determined
based on an actuarial valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit  Method, carried out  at the close of
the year.
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d. Other Long Term Employee Benefits are recognised in the same manner as Defined Benefit Plans.

e. Termination Benefits are charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which they are incurred.

X) Assets taken on Lease :-

For assets taken under operating lease, lease rentals payable are charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

Assets acquired under leases where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as Finance Leases.  Such assets are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the lower of
the fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease term and
disclosed as leased assets.  Each lease rental paid is allocated between the liability of the interest cost so
as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each period.

XI) Taxation :-

Income tax expense comprises Current Tax and Deferred Tax charge or credit. Provision for current tax is
made on the basis of the assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment year. The
deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is calculated by applying tax rate and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account
of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws, are recognized, only if there is a
virtual certainty of its realization, supported by convincing evidence. Deferred tax assets on account of
other timing differences are recognized only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of its realization.
At each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed to reassure realization.

XII) Impairment of Assets :-

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal / external factors. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the
year in which an asset is identified as impaired. Impairment losses recognised in prior accounting periods
are reversed if there has been any change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

XIII) Borrowing Costs :-

Interests and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised. Other interests and
borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

XIV) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :-

Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a
present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources.
Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the financial statements. Contingent Assets
are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

XV) Provision for Warranty :-

Warranty costs are provided based on a technical estimate of the costs required to be incurred for repairs,
replacement, material cost, servicing on the basis of the past experience of the Company. It is expected
that this expenditure will be incurred over the contractual warranty period.

XVI) Revenue from contracts :-

Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognized using the percentage of completion method.  Percentage
of completion is determined as a proportion of the cost incurred up to the reporting date of the total
estimated contract costs.  Proportionate completion is measured based upon the efforts incurred to date
in relation to the total estimated efforts to complete the contract.  The Company monitors estimates of
total contract revenue and costs on a routine basis throughout the delivery period.  The cumulative impact
of any change in estimates of the contract value or cost is reflected in the period in which the changes
become known.  In the event that a loss is anticipated on a particular contract, provision is made for the
estimated loss.
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1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated

financial statements (the “Consolidated Financial

Statements”) of Ador Welding Limited (“the

Company”) and its subsidiaries; hereinafter referred

to as the “Group” (refer Note 1 to the attached

consolidated financial statements) which comprise

the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,

2013, and the consolidated Statement of Profit and

Loss and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information which we have signed

under reference to this report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated

Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Management is responsible for the

preparation of these consolidated financial

statements that give a true and fair view of the

consolidated financial position, consolidated

financial performance and consolidated cash flows

of the Group in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in India. This

responsibility includes the design, implementation

and maintenance of internal control relevant to

the preparation and presentation of the

consolidated financial statements that give a true

and fair view and are free from mater ial

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Ador Welding Limited

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

consolidated financial statements based on our

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with

the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute

of Chartered Accountants of India. Those

Standards require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain

audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures

in the consolidated financial statements. The

procedures selected depend on the auditors’

judgement, including the assessment of the risks

of material misstatement of the consolidated

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditors

consider internal control relevant to the Company’s

preparation and fair presentation of the

consolidated financial statements in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in

the circumstances. An audit also includes

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting

policies used and the reasonableness of the

accounting estimates made by Management, as

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

6. We report that the consolidated financial

statements have been prepared by the

Company’s Management in accordance with the

requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21 –

Consolidated Financial Statements notified under

Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956.

7. Based on our audit and on consideration of reports

of other auditors on separate financial statements

and to the best of our information and according

to the explanations given to us, in our opinion, the

accompanying consolidated financial statements

give a true and fair view in conformity with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the consolidated Balance Sheet,

of the state of affairs of the Group as at

March 31, 2013;

(b) in the case of the consolidated Statement of

Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended

on that date; and

(c) in the case of the consolidated Cash Flow

Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended

on that date.

Other Matter

8. We did not audit the financial statements of four

subsidiaries which constitute total assets of

Rs. 1711.83 lacs and net assets of Rs. 368.27 lacs as

at March 31, 2013, total revenue of Rs. 109.65 lacs,

net loss of Rs. 175.29 lacs and net cash flows

amounting to Rs. 117.68 lacs for the year then

ended. These financial statements and other

financial information have been audited by other

auditors whose reports have been furnished to us,

and our opinion on the consolidated financial

statements to the extent they have been derived

from such financial statements is based solely on

the report of such other auditors.

For Dalal & Shah

Firm Registration number: 102021W

Chartered Accountants

S. Venkatesh

Mumbai, Partner

15th May, 2013 Membership Number: 037942
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2013
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Note No. As at
31st March, 2013

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ Funds

(a) Share Capital 2 1,359.85
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 16,868.69

(2) Minority Interest -
(3) Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings 4 741.80
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 5 43.60
(c) Long Term Provisions 6 59.55

(4) Current Liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 7 0.89
(b) Trade payables 8 3,512.74
(c) Other current liabilities 9 2,244.37
(d) Short-term provisions 10 1,765.46

Total 26,596.95

II. ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets

(a) Fixed assets 11
(i) Tangible assets 8,127.50
(ii) Intangible assets 18.43
(iii) Capital work-in-progress 45.40
(iv) Goodwill on consolidation 1,357.31

(b) Non-current investments 12 233.74
(c) Long-term loans and advances 13 203.72
(d) Other non-current assets 14 854.71

(2) Current Assets
(a) Current investments 15 2,478.56
(b) Inventories 16 4,465.38
(c) Trade receivables 17 7,265.36
(d) Cash and Bank balances 18 474.16
(e) Short-term loans and advances 19 603.50
(f) Other current assets 20 469.18

Total 26,596.95

The Notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our attached report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For DALAL & SHAH
Firm Registration No: 102021W A.B.Advani
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman

S.Venkatesh V.M.Bhide Joseph Mani S.M.Bhat
Partner Head-Corporate Administration Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
Membership No.: 037942 & Company Secretary

Mumbai, 15th May, 2013 Mumbai, 15th May, 2013
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As per our attached report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For DALAL & SHAH
Firm Registration No: 102021W A.B.Advani
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman

S.Venkatesh V.M.Bhide Joseph Mani S.M.Bhat
Partner Head-Corporate Administration Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
Membership No.: 037942 & Company Secretary

Mumbai, 15th May, 2013 Mumbai, 15th May, 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2013
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Note No. 2012-13

I. Revenue from operations 21 40,279.30
Less : Excise Duty 3,784.23

Revenue from operations (net) 36,495.07

II. Other Income 22 380.44

III. Total Revenue (I + II) 36,875.51

IV. Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 23 23,332.59

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 187.59

Changes in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 24 247.28

Employee benefit expense 25 3,747.75

Finance costs 26 98.27

Depreciation and amortization expense 1,237.71

Other expenses 27 5,579.58

Total Expenses 34,430.77

V. Profit before tax (III - IV) 2,444.74

VI. Tax expense:

(1) Current tax (769.00)
(2) Deferred tax credit 12.44
(3) Excess/(short) provision of taxes (0.18)

VII. Profit before Minority Interest (V - VI) 1,688.00

VIII. Minority Interest -

IX. Profit for the year (VII - VIII) 1,688.00

X. Earnings per equity share:
Basic & Diluted 28 12.41
The notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2013
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars 2012-13
A) Cash Flow arising from Operating Activities

Net Profit before Tax 2,444.74
Add/(Less) :
a) Depreciation and amortization expense 1,237.71
b) Finance costs 98.27
c) Assets written off / discarded 5.30
d) Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 2.83
e) Interest received from Banks and Others (8.73)
f) Interest received on Govt Securities (18.76)
g) Income from Mutual Funds (20.64)
h) Surplus on Sale of Investments (133.53)

1,162.45

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 3,607.19
Adjustment for :

a) (Increase) in Trade and Other Receivables (3,504.96)
b) Decrease in Inventories 992.08

(2,512.88)

1,094.31
Increase in Trade and other Payables 1,091.54

Cash Inflow From Operations 2,185.85
Add :

Direct Tax paid (731.84)

Cash Inflow in the course of Operating Activities 1,454.01

B) Cash Flow arising from Investing Activities
Outflow :
a) Acquisition of Fixed Assets 1,435.66
b) Acquisition of a Subsidiary 78.58
c) Purchase of Investments 4,526.76

6,041.00
Inflow :
a) Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 26.55
b) Proceeds from Sale of Investments 5,574.69
c) Interest Received on Fixed Deposits 8.73
d) Interest received on Investments 7.39
e) Income from Mutual Funds 20.64

5,638.00

Net Cash (Outflow) in the course of Investing Activities (403.00)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2013
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars 2012-13

C) Cash Flow arising from Financing Activities
Inflow :

Finance Lease 42.68
Outflow :

a) Finance costs 98.27
b) Dividend Paid 815.66
c) Dividend Tax Paid 132.36
d) Term Loans and other Borrowings (net) 82.27

1,128.56

Net Cash (Outflow) in the course of Financing Activities (1,085.88)

D) Change in Currency Fluctuation Reserve arising on consolidation (14.21)
Net (Decrease) in Cash/Cash Equivalents (A+B+C+D) (49.08)
Balance at the beginning of the year 382.33
Add : Acquisition of Subsidiary 2.93

Cash/Cash Equivalents at the close of the year - Refer Note 18 336.18

The Notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our attached report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For DALAL & SHAH
Firm Registration No: 102021W A.B.Advani
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman

S.Venkatesh V.M.Bhide Joseph Mani S.M.Bhat
Partner Head-Corporate Administration Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
Membership No.: 037942 & Company Secretary

Mumbai, 15th May, 2013 Mumbai, 15th May, 2013
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Note 2a - Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par (face) value of
Rs. 10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive the
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all the preferential amounts, in proportion to
their shareholding.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :

Note 1 - General Information
The consolidated financial statements relate to Ador Welding Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiary
companies. These are the first consolidated financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, the
comparative figures for the previous period are not presented. The following subsidiary companies are
considered in the consolidated financial statements:

Name of Subsidiary Company Country of Incorporation % of holding either directly or through
subsidiaries as at 31st March, 2013

Ador Welding Academy India 100 % Subsidiary (w.e.f 24th July, 2012)
Private Ltd.

Plasma Laser Israel 77% Subsidiary (w.e.f.15th January, 2013) *
Technologies Ltd.

Plasma Laser USA 100 % Subsidiary of Plasma Laser
Technologies, NA, Inc. Technologies Ltd.

Aluminium Hybrid Israel 94.73 % Subsidiary of Plasma Laser
Systems Ltd. Technologies Ltd.

* in terms of employment contracts with certain employees of Plasma Laser Technologies Ltd. (PLT) and
the Share Purchase Agreement signed by the Company for acquisition of control over PLT, PLT has
committed to grant these employees shares under an Employee Stock Option Plan (‘ESOP’ Plan).
Post issue of these shares, the percentage holding of the Company in PLT would reduce to 60%.
However, such ESOP plan is pending approval of tax authorities in Israel and has, accordingly, not
been given any effect in these consolidated financial statements.

Note 2 - Share Capital
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Authorised :

3,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 3,000.00

Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid Up:

1,35,98,467 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid-up 1,359.85

Total 1,359.85
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Note 2c - Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of aggregate shares in the Company

Particulars As at 31st March, 2013

No. of shares held % of holding
Equity Shares

J.B.Advani & Co. Private Limited 68,00,531 50.01

Reliance Capital Trustee Co. Limited 6,85,770 5.04

Total 74,86,301 55.05

Note 3 - Reserves and Surplus
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2013

General Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 12,990.00
Add:
Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 190.80
Balance at the end of the year 13,180.80
Capital Redemption Reserve Account
Balance at the end of the year 222.98
Share Premium Account -
Currency Translation Reserve
Opening Balance -
Add : During the year (14.21)

Balance at the end of the year (14.21)
Surplus as per Profit and Loss Account
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,936.49
Add : Net Profit for the year 1,688.00
Less : Transfer to Reserves (190.80)
Less : Proposed Dividend (815.91)
Less : Tax on proposed Dividend @ (138.66)
Balance at the end of the year 3,479.12

Total 16,868.69

@ Dividend proposed to be distributed to equity shareholders is Rs.6/- per equity share.

Note 2b - Shares held by Holding Company

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

No. of shares

Equity Shares

J.B.Advani & Co. Private Limited 68,00,531



6 0  A n n u a l R e p o r t  t h

86

Note 5 - Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Deferred Tax Liability on account of :
Depreciation 59.42
Capital Expenditure for Scientific Research 68.36

127.78

Deferred Tax Assets on account of :
Employee Benefits 78.72
VRS Payments 0.37
Provision for Doubtful Debts 5.09

84.18

Net Deferred Tax Liability Total 43.60

Note 6 - Long Term Provisions
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Liability for employee rights upon retirement (Net) 59.55

Total 59.55

Note 4 - Long-Term Borrowings
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Secured :
Other 494.25
Unsecured :
Loan from Banks 107.19
Maturities of finance lease obligations 140.36

Total 741.80

In Subsidiaries Terms of repayment
Secured
Other Loan - The vendor has an option to convert Principal amount is due in December, 2016
the loan into share capital during the pendency Interest amount is due in December, 2017
of the loan agreement.
Unsecured
Loan from Banks 36 monthly installments starting from May, 2013

and last installment due in April, 2016
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Note 8 - Trade Payables
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Trade Payables 3,512.74

Total 3,512.74

Note 9 - Other Current Liabilities
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Current maturities of finance lease obligations 30.00

Current maturities of Long Term Loans 197.25

Other current liabilities 1,397.93

Unclaimed Dividend 133.35

Advance against Sales and Services 375.78

Deposits from distributors 110.06

Total 2,244.37

Note 7 - Short Term Borrowings
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Secured :
Working Capital Loans from Banks (Refer Note below) -
Unsecured :
Working Capital Loans from Banks 0.89

Total 0.89

(i) Working Capital facilities from Banks are secured by hypothecation of stocks and other tangible
movable assets of the Company, both present & future and book debts in favour of Bank of Baroda
and HDFC Bank Limited. The said facilities are also secured by way of pari-passu charge on the
entire plant and machinery and other moveable fixed assets of the Company and on the land &
building at the Company’s Silvassa Unit.

(ii) Guarantees given by banks to third parties amounting to Rs.804.61 lacs; (Previous year Rs. 848.05
lacs) on behalf of the Company are secured against securities mentioned in (i) above.
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Note 11 - Fixed Assets
(Rupees in lacs)

(A) Assets GROSS BLOCK (AT COST / BOOK VALUE) DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

As at Acqui- Additions/ Traslation/ Deductions/ As at As at For the Accumulated Translation Deductions/ Upto As at
Particulars 01.04.2012 sitions Adjustments Adjustments Adjustments 31.03.2013 31.03.2012 Year Depreciation Adjustments Adjustments 31.03.2013 31.03.2013

on acquisitions

Tangible Assets

Land - Freehold 206.11 - - - - 206.11 - - - - - - 206.11

Land - Leasehold (a) 48.77 - - - 0.65 (c) 48.12 - - - - - - 48.12

Buildings 5,308.22 26.54 705.35 0.40 (0.96) 6,041.47 2,290.06 302.54 8.21 0.14 (5.11) 2,606.06 3,435.41

Ownership Premises (b) 322.80 - - - - 322.80 163.64 7.96 - - - 171.60 151.20

Plant and Machinery 11,375.37 91.06 525.68 1.39 137.53 11,855.97 8,297.11 688.42 82.25 1.27 120.04 8,949.01 2,906.96

Electrical Installations 790.04 - 118.98 - (2.65) 911.67 371.23 66.50 - - (2.26) 439.99 471.68

Furniture and Fixtures 665.21 29.03 117.04 0.47 23.44 788.31 495.00 38.91 19.80 0.31 17.43 536.59 251.72

Office Equipments 111.31 - 87.70 - 9.73 189.28 88.55 14.54 - - 8.53 94.56 94.72

Vehicles 482.29 3.23 41.66 0.07 85.26 441.99 299.44 54.24 2.35 0.03 72.12 283.94 158.05

Temporary Shed 3.02 - - - - 3.02 3.02 - - - - 3.02 -

Leased Assets - Vehicles 147.18 - 64.66 - - 211.84 19.50 23.53 - - - 43.03 168.81

Research and
Development Assets :

Land Freehold 33.61 - - - - 33.61 - - - - - - 33.61

Buildings 92.34 - - - 1.85 90.49 91.83 - - - 5.87 85.96 4.53

Furniture & Fixture 0.37 - - - 0.37 - 0.07 - - - 0.07 - -

Plant and Machinery 928.09 - 11.45 - 7.87 931.67 716.99 30.57 - - 11.07 736.49 195.18

Air Conditioners 2.23 - - - - 2.23 0.60 0.23 - - 0.83 1.40

Sub-Total 20,516.96 149.86 1,672.52 2.33 263.09 22,078.58 12,837.04 1,227.44 112.61 1.75 227.76 13,951.08 8,127.50

Intangible Assets

Computer Software 276.00 - 7.16 - - 283.16 255.11 9.62 - - - 264.73 18.43

Sub-Total 276.00 - 7.16 - - 283.16 255.11 9.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 264.73 18.43

TOTAL 20,792.96 149.86 1,679.68 2.33 263.09 22,361.74 13,092.15 1,237.06 112.61 1.75 227.76 14,215.81 8,145.93

(B) Capital Work-in-Progress 45.40

GRAND TOTAL 8,191.33

(a) Leasehold Land includes Land Rs.39.32 lacs (Net of amortisation Rs.38.84 lacs) acquired by the Company on a co-ownership / lease basis for which conveyance deed is yet to be executed.

(b) Includes :

(i) Rs.0.01 lac being the aggregate value of Shares in Co-operative Housing Societies.

(ii) Rs.4.17 lacs for Tenements in an Association of Apartment Owners.

(c) Represents amount written off on account of amortisation of leasehold land Rs.0.65 lac; (Previous year Rs. 0.65 lac)

(d) Net book value of assets, includes net book value of assets at the Company’s Ahmednagar division aggregating Rs. 62.41 lacs, which have been retired from active use. As per the estimates made by the
management,the net realisable value of such fixed assets would atleast be equal to the carrying value of the fixed assets. Hence, in the opinion of the management, no expected loss needs to be recognised.

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars 2012-13

Depreciation for the year 1,237.06

Add: Amortisation 0.65

Depreciation and amortization 1,237.71

Note 10 - Short-Term Provisions
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Provision for Excise Duty on Finished Goods Stock 358.03
Provision for Employee Benefits 411.94
Provision for Warranties 37.00
Provision for Proposed Dividend 815.91
Provision for Tax on Proposed Dividend 138.66
Provision for Wealth Tax 3.92

Total 1,765.46
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Note 12 - Non-Current Investments (At Cost) (Unquoted)
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Non-Trade Long-Term Investments
i) 6 Years National Savings Certificates 0.03
ii) RECL Bonds (Non-Convertible Redeemable Taxable Bonds) Series-VIII 50.00
iii) Tax Free Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Bonds 183.71

Total 233.74

Note 13 - Long-Term Loans and Advances
(Unsecured, considered good)

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Sundry Deposits 138.18
Loans to Employees 8.85
Capital Advances 56.20
Others 0.49

Total 203.72

Note 14 - Other Non-Current Assets
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Fixed Deposits for bank guarantees 56.70
Other Non-Current Assets 1.31
VAT and Sales tax recoveries 791.70
Deposits with Banks with maturity of more than twelve months 5.00

Total 854.71

Note 15 - Current Investments (Unquoted)
Current Investments (At lower of Cost or Fair Value):-

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Non-Trade Short-term Investments
In Mutual Funds 2,478.56

Total 2,478.56
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Note 16 - Inventories
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

1) Stores, Spares, Parts, etc. 292.17
2) Raw Materials and Components and Packing Material

(includes in-transit Rs.20.61 lacs) 1,549.06
3) Work-in-Progress 672.26
4) Finished Goods (includes in-transit Rs.8.08 lacs) 1,870.07
5) Stock-in-trade 81.82

Total 4,465.38

Note 17 - Trade Receivables
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Outstanding for more than six months from the date they are due for payment *
Unsecured, considered good 551.59
Outstanding for less than six months from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good 6,713.77
Unsecured, considered doubtful 17.18
Less : Provision for doubtful debts (17.18)

Total 7,265.36

* Includes an amount of Rs.176.49 lacs on account of retention money of Project Engineering Business

Note 18 - Cash and Bank Balances
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
i) Cash on hand 15.14
ii) Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 321.04

336.18
Other Bank Balances:
i) Earmarked Balances with Banks (Dividend accounts) 133.20
ii) Deposits with Banks with maturity of more than three

months and less than twelve months 4.78

137.98

Total 474.16
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Note 19 - Short-Term Loans and Advances
(Unsecured, considered good)

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Loans and Advances: to Employees 25.14
Loans and Advance to Related Parties 5.92
Balances with Central Excise, Customs and Port Trust 7.29
Sundry Deposits 5.33
Advance to suppliers 221.72
Export Incentive Receivable 130.12
Advance payment of Income Tax (Net of provisions) 71.51
Others 136.47

Total 603.50

Note 20 - Other Current Assets
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

VAT and Sales Tax Receivables 338.52
Others 130.66

Total 469.18

Note 21 - Revenue from Operations
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2013

Sale of Products

i) Manufactured Products 39,892.37
ii) Traded Goods 273.18
iii) Sale of Services 20.32
iv) Other Operating Revenue 93.43

Total 40,279.30

During the year there are no revenues to be recognised under the percentage of completion method
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Note 22 - Other Income
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2013

Interest received on Govt Securities 18.76
Interest received from Banks and Others 8.73
Surplus on sale of current investments 133.53
Refund of Sales tax on Assessment 2.88
Income from Mutual Funds 20.64
Rent and Compensation 24.65
Royalty received 5.14
Exchange difference gain (net) 109.33
Other Non-Operating Income 56.78

Total 380.44

Note 23 - Cost of Materials Consumed
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2013

Opening Stock 2,157.93
Add: On acquisition of a Subsidiary 72.29
Add: Purchases during the year 22,630.82
Less: Closing Stock (1,528.45)

Total 23,332.59

Note 24 - Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress
and Stock-in-trade

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2013

Opening Stock :
Finished Goods 1,976.64
Stock-in-trade 97.50
Work-in-Progress 719.17

Total 2,793.31

Add: On acquisition of a Subsidiary
Finished Goods 52.06
Work-in-Progress 2.79

Total 54.85

Closing Stock :
Finished Goods 1,861.99
Stock-in-trade 81.82
Work-in-Progress 672.26

Total 2,616.07

Variation in Excise Duty on opening and closing
stock of finished goods (net) 15.19

Total 247.28
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Note 25 - Employee Benefit Expense
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2013

Salaries and incentives 3,106.61
Contribution to Provident and other funds 227.93
Staff Welfare expenses 413.21

Total 3,747.75

Note 26 - Finance Costs
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2013

Interest Expense 45.97
Other borrowing costs 52.30

Total 98.27

Note 27 - Other Expenses
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2013

Manufacturing expenses and other expenses - Refer Note 27A 2,361.41
Electricity and Power expenses 26.66
Rent 106.28
Freight 294.66
Legal and Professional fees 127.67
Insurance - Other than factory 23.73
Repairs and Maintenance - others 150.93
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle expenses 911.41
Directors Sitting Fees 5.54
Telephone, Postage & Telegram 205.75
Rates and Taxes - Office 66.52
Advertisement and Sales Promotion expenses 138.80
Commission paid 30.77
Bad Debts Written off 11.65
Provision for Doubtful Debts 15.00
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (net) 2.83
Assets written off / discarded 5.30
Printing and stationery 59.17
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,035.50

Total 5,579.58



6 0  A n n u a l R e p o r t  t h

94

Note 27A - Manufacturing and Other Expenses
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2013

Consumption of Stores and spares 717.24
Power and Fuel 906.43
Repairs to Machinery 118.92
Repairs to Building 8.70
Other Manufacturing expenses 610.12

Total 2,361.41

Note 28 - Computation of Profit for Earnings per Share

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2013

Profit for the year after tax (Rs. in lacs) 1,688.00
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 1,35,98,467

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.) 12.41

(Rupees in lacs)

Note 29 - Contingent Liabilities not provided for As at
Particulars 31st March, 2013

a) Disputed Sales Tax as the matters are in appeal (advance paid
Rs.9.21 lacs; Previous year Rs.9.21 lacs) 67.52

b) Disputed Excise duties as the matters are in appeal (advance
paid Rs.2.04 lacs; Previous year Rs.3.15 lacs) 114.65

c) On account of bills discounted by the Company 129.81
d) Bonds / Undertakings given by the Company under Concessional

duty / exemption scheme / Waiver of penalty to Customs Authorities 109.99
e) Other matters 82.85

Note 30 - Commitments
a) On Capital Account – Capital Contracts not provided for (Net of advances) 422.19
b) Others - Subsidiary

i. Obligations to pay royalties on future sales against
research grant received. (Maximum amount payable) 1,324.31

ii. Compensation to Distributor Amount
Unascertainable

Note 31 - In the opinion of the Management, no item of current assets, including inventories has a value on
realisation in the ordinary course of business, which is less than the amount at which it is stated in the
Balance Sheet.
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NOTE 32 - Segment Information

A. Business Segment (Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Consumables Equipment Total
& Project

Engineering

External Revenue 28,214.91 8,280.16 36,495.07

Inter Segment Revenue - - -

Total Revenue 28,214.91 8,280.16 36,495.07

Segment Result before Interest and tax 3,116.14 587.66 3,703.80

(Less) :

Unallocable expenses
(Net of unallocable income) - - (1,160.79)

Interest and Finance charges (net) - - (98.27)

In respect of earlier years (net) - - (0.18)

Provision for taxes (Net of Deferred Tax) - - (756.56)

Net Profit / (Loss) 3,116.14 570.95 1,688.00

Segment Assets 13,988.79 7,869.71 21,858.50

Unallocated Assets - - 4,738.45

Total Assets - - 26,596.95

Segment Liabilities 3,252.16 2,760.18 6,012.34

Unallocated Liabilities - - 2.356.06

Total Liabilities - - 8,368.40

Capital Expenditure

Segment Capital Expenditure 427.00 1,586.60 2,013.60

Unallocated Capital Expenditure - - 870.71

Total Capital Expenditure (Tangible &
Intangible Assets) - - 2,884.31

Depreciation and Amortisation

Segment Depreciation and Amortisation 836.56 283.18 1,119.74

Unallocated Depreciation and Amortisation - - 117.97

Total Depreciation and Amortisation - - 1,237.71

Significant Non-Cash Expenditure

Segment Significant Non-Cash Expenditure 5.30 - 5.30

Unallocated Significant Non-Cash Expenditure - - -

Total Significant Non-Cash Expenditure - - 5.30
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B. Geographical Segment (Rupees in lacs)

Particulars India Outside India Total

Segment Revenue 31,765.89 4,729.18 36,495.07

Carrying Amount of Segment Assets 19,044.83 2,813.67 21,858.50

Additions to Fixed Assets
(Tangible & Intangible Assets) 631.85 1,381.75 2,013.60

C. Other Disclosures

1. Segments have been identified in line with the Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting
(AS – 17) taking into account the organisation structure as well as differential risks and returns of
these segments.

2. The Company has disclosed Business Segment as the primary segment.

3. Types of Products and Services in each Business Segment:

Business Segment Types of Products and Services

a) Consumables - Electrodes, Wires, Agency items related to
consumables.

b) Equipment & Project Engineering - Equipment, Spares, Cutting Products and Agency
Items related to Equipment and Cutting Products &
Design, Engineer ing, Procurement and
Commissioning of Flares, Incinerators, Furnaces, etc.

4. The Segment Revenues, Results, Assets and Liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable
to each of the segment and amounts allocated on a reasonable basis.

Note 33 - Related Parties Disclosure
A. Relationships:

Relationship Name of the Person / Company
a) Holding Company J. B. Advani & Co. Pvt. Ltd.

b) Investor having significant Ador Powertron Limited
influence and its associates Ador Fontech Limited

Ador Multiproducts Limited

c) Other related parties where
significant influence exists Cryolor Asia Pacific Pvt. Ltd. 

d) Key Management Personnel Ms. A. B. Advani
Mr. Raman Kumar
Mr. S.M.Bhat

e) Relatives of Key Management
Personnel where transactions
have taken place No transactions have taken place during the year.

Note: Related Party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.
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B. Transactions:

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Holding Investors having Other related Key
Company significant influence  parties where Management

and its significant  Personnel
Associates influence exists

Sales and Services :     

Goods, Materials and
Services {Ador
Multiproducts Ltd.
Rs.473.96 lacs,
Ador Fontech Ltd.
Rs.380.33 lacs} 34.71 874.27 8.09 -

Income :     

Rent {Ador Fontech
Ltd. Rs.3.84 lacs, Ador
Powertron Ltd. Rs.2.80 lacs} - 6.64 - -

Royalty {Ador Fontech Ltd
Rs.2.93 lacs, Ador Powertron
Ltd. Rs.1.75 lacs} - 4.91 - -

Other Receipts :

Recovery of Expenses 17.02 15.76 - -

Purchases :     

Goods and Agency Items
{Ador Fontech Ltd.
Rs. 1.16 lacs, Ador
Powertron Ltd.
Rs.2.92 lacs} 1,013.99 4.60 - -

Fixed Assets
{Ador Powertron Ltd.
Rs.64.55 lacs} - 72.60 - -

Expenses :

Remuneration - - - 255.97

Reimbursement of
Expenses 28.58 19.38 - -

Outstanding :

Receivables {Ador
Fontech Ltd. Rs.42.00 lacs,
Ador Multiproducts Ltd.
Rs.7.38 lacs} 13.03 62.86 8.06 -

Payables {Ador Powertron
Ltd. Rs.1.23 lacs} 197.49 1.49 - -



6 0  A n n u a l R e p o r t  t h

98

Note 34 - Employee Benefits
a) An amount of Rs.118.23 Lacs towards Defined Contribution Plans is recognised as expense in the

Profit and Loss Account.

b) The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan as required under Accounting Standard
- 15 and the reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the Defined
Benefit Obligation:

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars 2012-13
Change in present value of obligation
Obligation at beginning of the year 328.49
Current Service Cost 30.04
Interest Cost 29.32
Actuarial (gain) / loss 8.00
Benefits paid (93.31)
Obligation at the end of the year 302.54

Change in Plan assets
Fair value of Plan assets at beginning of the year 281.52
Expected return on Plan Assets 22.62
Actuarial gain / (loss) (22.78)
Contributions 46.97
Benefits paid (93.31)
Fair value of Plan Assets at end of the year 235.02

Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of Plan Assets
and amount recognized in the balance sheet:
Present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 302.54
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year (235.02)
Net liability / (Asset) recognized in the Balance Sheet 67.52

Gratuity cost recognized for the year:
Current Service cost 30.04
Interest cost 29.32
Expected return on Plan Assets (22.62)
Actuarial (gain) / loss 30.78
Net gratuity cost 67.52

Break-up of Plan Assets at the end of the year
Insurer Managed Funds 100%
Assumptions:
Interest rate 7.85%
Estimated rate of return on Plan Assets 7.50%
Rate of growth in salary levels* 8.00%

* The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.
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c) Provident Fund Liability

In case of certain employees, the Provident Fund contribution is made to a trust administered by
the Company.

In terms of the guidance note issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India, the actuary has provided
a valuation of Provident Fund liability based on the assumptions listed below.

The following table gives the reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value
of the Defined Benefit Obligation:

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars 2012-13
Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 842.18
Current Service Cost 46.25
Interest Cost 67.96
Actuarial (gain) / loss 93.59
Employees contribution 79.60
Liabilities assumed on Acquisition / (settled on Divestiture) 51.31
Benefits paid (205.57)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 975.32

Change in Fair Value of Assets

Opening Fair value of Plan Assets 821.10
Expected return on Plan Assets 59.53
Actuarial gain / (loss) 90.34
Employer contributions during the period 46.25
Employee contributions during the period 79.60
Assets acquired on Acquisition / (distributed on Divestiture) 51.31
Benefits paid (205.57)
Closing Fair value of Plan Assets 942.56

Break-up of Plan Assets at the end of the year
Government of India Securities 25%
Corporate Bonds 33%
Special Deposit Schemes 30%
Equity shares of Listed companies 10%
Others 2%
Assumptions:

Discount rate 7.85%
Expected rate of return on assets 7.53%
Discount rate for the remaining term to maturity of the investment 7.94%
Average historic yield on the investment 7.62%
Guaranteed rate of return 8.50%
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Note 35 - Lease Rental Obligation (Operating Lease)
(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Amount due within one year 41.65

Amount due from one year to five years 41.51

Amount due from five years and above 106.64

Note 36 - Lease Obligation (Finance Lease)
Net carrying amount of carrying assets as at Balance Sheet date – Rs.168.81 lacs.

The minimum future lease rentals and present value of minimum lease rentals payable are as follows:

(Rupees in lacs)

 Particulars As at
31st March, 2013

Minimum lease rentals payable as on Balance Sheet date 182.85

Present value of Minimum lease rentals payable 162.53

As per our attached report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors

For DALAL & SHAH
Firm Registration No: 102021W A.B.Advani
Chartered Accountants Executive Chairman

S.Venkatesh V.M.Bhide Joseph Mani S.M.Bhat
Partner Head-Corporate Administration Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
Membership No.: 037942 & Company Secretary

Mumbai, 15th May, 2013 Mumbai, 15th May, 2013

Note 37 - Significant accounting policies and practices adopted by the Company are as disclosed in the
Statement annexed to these Financial Statements as Annexure I.

Note 38 - The details of subsidiaries in terms of General circular no. 2/2011 dated 08th February, 2011 issued by
Government of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs under Section 212(8) of the Companies Act, 1956,
are disclosed in Annexure II to these financial statements.

(Rupees in lacs)

Particulars Minimum Lease Present Value of
Payment Minimum Lease

Payments
As at 31st March, 2013

Amount due within one year 72.81 64.72
Amount due from one year to five years 110.04 97.81
Amount due from five years and above  - -

TOTA L 182.85 162.53
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ANNEXURE - I ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31st MARCH, 2013.
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices :-
I. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements :-

(i) The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the consolidation are drawn upto the same
reporting date as that of the Parent Company, i.e. year ended 31st March. Certain foreign subsidiaries
follow January to December as their financial year. In the case of these foreign subsidiaries the
Company has redrawn their financial statements for the period ended 31st March.

(ii) The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on the accrual
basis of accounting. The accounts of the Parent Company and Indian Subsidiary have been prepared
in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) and those
of the foreign subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with the local laws and the applicable
Accounting Standards/generally accepted accounting principles. However, the differences in
accounting policies of those subsidiaries with the Indian GAAP do not have material impact on these
consolidated financial statements.

(iii) All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule VI to the Companies Act,1956.
Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle to be
12 months for the purpose of current-non current classification of assets and liabilities.

II. Principles of Consolidation :-
(i) The financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line-

by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses,
after eliminating intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and the unrealised profits.

(ii) The excess of the cost to the Parent Company of its investments in each of the subsidiaries over its share
of equity in the respective subsidiary, on the acquisition date, is recognised in the financial statements as
goodwill and assessed for impairment at each reporting date. Fluctuation to goodwill in respect of
foreign subsidiary arising subsequent to acquisition, on translation at the year end rate, is included in the
currency fluctuation reserve.

(iii) The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in compliance,
in all material aspects, with the applicable accounting principles in India, the applicable accounting
standards notified under Section 211 (3C) and the other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

III. Use of Estimates :-
The preparation of financial statements, in confirmity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known

IV. Recognition of Income and Expenditure :-
1. Sale of goods is recognized on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership which is generally

on the dispatch of goods by the Company.
2. Benefit on account of entitlement to import duty - free materials under Duty Entitlement Passbook

Scheme is accounted in the year of export as Export Incentives.
3. Other Revenue / Income and Cost / Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are

earned or incurred.
V. Fixed Assets :-

1. Fixed Assets are accounted by the Company on the basis of historical costs. Gains or Losses arising on
disposal are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss Account of the relevant financial year.

2. Method of Depreciation / Amortisation :
(a) By Indian Companies - on WDV method and at rates under the Companies Act, 1956 except

depreciation on assets acquired under finance lease is spread over the lease period or useful
life whichever is shorter.

(b) By foreign subsidiaries - on methods and at rates permissible under applicable local laws or at
such rates so as to depreciate the assets over their useful life.
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(c) Cost of leasehold land is amortised over the period of lease.
VI. Investments :-

Long Term Investments are stated at ‘Cost’. A provision for diminution is made to recognise a decline, other
than temporary in the value of long term investments. Current Investments are stated at lower of cost and
fair value.

VII. Valuation of Inventories :-
Inventories of Raw Materials and Components, Work in progress, Finished Goods, Goods for Trade, Stores,
Spares and Packing Materials are stated ‘at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower’. Goods in
Transit are stated ‘at cost’. Cost comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The excise duty in respect of closing
inventory of finished goods is included as part of finished goods.
Cost formula used is ‘Average Cost’. Due allowance is estimated and made for defective and obsolete
items, wherever necessary, based on the past experience of the Company.

VIII. Foreign Currency transactions by Indian Companies :-
All transactions in foreign currency, are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates when
the relevant transactions take place;
Monetary items in the form of Current Assets and Current Liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding at the
close of the year, are converted in Indian Currency at the appropriate rates of exchange prevailing on the
date of the Balance Sheet. Resultant gain or loss is accounted during the year;
In respect of Forward Exchange contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risks, the difference
between the forward rate and exchange rate at the inception of the contract is recognized as income or
expense over the life of the contract. Further, the exchange differences arising on such contracts are
recognised as income or expense along with the exchange differences on the underlying assets / liabilities.
Profit or loss on cancellations / renewals of forward contracts is recognised during the year.
Accounting of foreign branches / integral operations:-
a. Monetary items in the form of Current Assets and Current Liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding at

the close of the year, are converted at the appropriate rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
the Balance Sheet.

b. Fixed assets and depreciation thereon, are converted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date
of acquisition of the respective asset.

c. Revenue items, excluding depreciation, are converted at the monthly exchange rates prevailing on
the date of the transaction.

IX. Foreign Currency Translations :-
For the purpose of consolidation, the amounts appearing in foreign currencies in the Financial Statements
of the foreign subsidiaries are translated at the following rates of exchange:
(a) Average rates for the incomes and expenditure.
(b) The year-end rates for the assets and liabilities.

X. Research and Development :-
1. Revenue expenditure on Research and Development (including overheads) are charged out as

expense through the natural heads of account in the year in which they are incurred.
2. Expenditure of a capital nature on Research and Development is debited to Fixed Assets and

depreciation is provided on such assets, as are depreciable.
XI. Retirement and Other Employee Related Benefits :-

a. Short term employee benefits - All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the
service are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service

b. Post Employment / Retirement Benefits - Defined Contribution Plans such as Government Pension
Fund etc., are charged to the Profit and Loss Account as incurred.

c. Defined Benefit Obligation Plans – The present value of the obligation under such plans, is determined
based on an actuarial valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method, carried out (approximately)
at the close of the year. Actuarial gains and losses arising on such valuation are recognised immediately
in the Profit and Loss Account. In the case of gratuity, which is funded, the fair value of the plan assets
is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on net basis.
In respect of certain employees, the monthly contribution for provident fund is made to a Trust
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administered by the Company. The interest payable by the Trust is notified by the Government. The
Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any.
The present value of obligation under Interest Rate Guarantee on Exempt Provident Funds, is determined
based on an actuarial valuation, using the Projected Accrued Benefit Method, carried out  at the
close of the year.

d. Other Long Term Employee Benefits are recognised in the same manner as Defined Benefit Plans.
e. Termination Benefits are charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which they are incurred.

XII. Assets taken on Lease :-
For assets taken under operating lease, lease rentals payable are charged to the Profit and Loss Account.
Assets acquired under leases where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as Finance Leases. Such assets are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the lower of
the fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease term and
disclosed as leased assets. Each lease rental paid is allocated between the liability of the interest cost so as
to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each period.

XIII. Taxation :-
Income tax expense comprises Current Tax and Deferred Tax charge or credit. Provision for current tax is
made on the basis of the assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment year. The
deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is calculated by applying tax rate and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account
of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws, are recognized, only if there is a
virtual certainty of its realization, supported by convincing evidence. Deferred tax assets on account of
other timing differences are recognized only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of its realization.
At each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed to reassure realization.

XIV. Impairment of Assets :-
The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal / external factors. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the
year in which an asset is identified as impaired. Impairment losses recognised in prior accounting periods
are reversed if there has been any change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

XV. Borrowing Costs :-
Interests and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised. Other interests and
borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

XVI. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :-
Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a
present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources.
Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the financial statements. Contingent Assets
are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

XVII. Provision for Warranty :-
Warranty costs are provided based on a technical estimate of the costs required to be incurred for repairs,
replacement, material cost, servicing on the basis of the past experience of the Company. It is expected
that this expenditure will be incurred over the contractual warranty period.

XVIII. Revenue from contracts :-
Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognized using the percentage of completion method. Percentage
of completion is determined as a proportion of the cost incurred up to the reporting date of the total
estimated contract costs. Proportionate completion is measured based upon the efforts incurred to date in
relation to the total estimated efforts to complete the contract. The Company monitors estimates of total
contract revenue and costs on a routine basis throughout the delivery period. The cumulative impact of any
change in estimates of the contract value or cost is reflected in the period in which the changes become
known. In the event that a loss is anticipated on a particular contract, provision is made for the estimated loss.

XIX. Government Grants :-
Grants received against specific fixed assets are adjusted to the cost of the assets and those in the nature
of promoter’s contribution are credited to Capital Reserve. Revenue Grants are recognised in the Profit
and Loss Account in accordance with the related scheme and in the period in which these are accrued.
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Annexure II - Information on Subsidiary Companies
(As directed by the Central Government Circular under Section 212(8) of the Companies Act, 1956)

Table - A (Rupees in lacs)

Sr. No. Particulars Indian Subsidiary Foreign Subsidiaries

Ador Welding Plasma Laser Plasma Laser Aluminium Hybrid
Academy Pvt. Ltd. Technologies Ltd. Technologies, NA, Inc.  Systems Ltd.

1. Capital 10.00 50.47 0.60 -

2. Reserves (23.00) (1,065.90) (598.45) (56.27)

3. Total Assets 37.73 365.62 11.46 18.46

4. Total Liabilities 50.73 1,380.46 609.32 74.73

5. Investments - - - -

6. Turnover & Other Income 31.05 345.89 36.94 -

7. Profit / (Loss) before taxation (33.17) 87.32 (15.96) (3.25)

8. Provision for Tax (10.17) - - -

9. Profit / (Loss) after taxation (23.00) 87.32 (15.96) (3.25)

10. Proposed Dividend - - - -

Statement pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956

Table - B

Particulars Indian Subsidiary Foreign Subsidiaries

Ador Welding Plasma Laser Plasma Laser Aluminium Hybrid
Academy Pvt. Ltd.  Technologies Ltd. Technologies, NA, Inc.  Systems Ltd.

Holding Company’s interest 100% 77% 100% 94.73%
as at March 31, 2013

Shares held by the Holding 1,00,000 261,105 60,000 950
Company in the subsidiary

Net aggregate profits / (losses) of the (33.17) 67.24 (15.96) (3.25)
subsidiary for the current period so
far as it concerns the members of
the Holding Company.

a) Dealt with or provided for in the 33.17 67.24 (15.96) (3.25)
accounts of the Holding Company

b) Not dealt with or provided for in - - - -
the accounts of the Holding
Company

Note :
In respect of foreign subsidiaries :
Table A
a) Item Nos. 1 to 5 are translated at exchange rate as on 31st March, 2013, 1 New Israeli Shekel

= Rs.14.89
b) Item Nos. 6 to 10 are translated at average exchange rate, 1 New Israeli Shekel = Rs.14.78
Table B
Net aggregate profit or loss of foreign subsidiaries are translated at average exchange rate, 1 New
Israeli Shekel = Rs.14.78






